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PART I
Item 1. Business.

The Company

TransAct Technologies Incorporated (“TransAct” be t‘Company”) was incorporated in June 1996 andhbegperating as a staatbne business
August 1996 as a spiff of the printer business that was formerly coctdd by certain subsidiaries of Tridex Corporatiée completed an initial pub
offering on August 22, 1996.

TransAct designs, develops, assembles, marketsamites world-class transaction-based printergutite Epic and Ilthaca®brand names. Known a
respected worldwide for innovative designs and-vealld service reliability, our thermal, inkjet arnichpact printers generate toprlity transactio
records such as receipts, tickets, coupons, regstenals and other documents. We focus on thieviing core markets: banking and pointssle
(“POS”), casino and gaming, and lottery. We sei products to original equipment manufacturersEM3"), valueadded resellers ("VARs"), selec
distributors, as well as directly to emders. Our product distribution spans across tmericas, Europe, the Middle East, Africa, Asia, thaig, Latir
America, the Caribbean Islands and the South Radfeyond printers, TransAct is a leader in prongdprinting supplies to the full transaction psir
market. Through our TransAct Services Group (“TS@&® provide a complete range of supplies and conblasaused in the printing and scant
activities of customers in the hospitality, bankimetail, gaming, and government markets. Throoghwebstore, www.transactsupplies.comnd ou
direct selling team, we address thelime- demand for these products. We have one pyiroperating facility and eastern region serviceteefocated i
Ithaca, NY, our printer sales headquarters andesesegion service center in Las Vegas, NV, a paatl manufacturing and repair center located in
Britain, CT, a European sales and service centérarinited Kingdom, a sales office located in Maead two other sales offices located in the Ui
States. Our executive offices are located at Cammdien Center, 2319 Whitney Avenue, Suite 3B, Ham@dn 06518, with a telephone number of (-
859-6800.

Financial Information about Segments
We operate in one reportable segment, the des@relgpment, assembly and marketing of transactased printers and printeglated service, suppli
and spare parts.

Products, Services and Distribution Methods

Printers

TransAct designs, develops, assembles and marketsad array of transactidmased printers utilizing inkjet, thermal and imppdnting technology fc
applications requiring up to 60 character colunprénarily in the banking, POS, casino, gaming amitety markets. Our printers are configurable
offer customers the ability to choose from a varigtfeatures and functions. Options typicallylirde interface configuration, paper cutting devjqepe
handling capacities and cabinetry color. In additio our configurable printers, we design and radde custom printers for certain OEM customers
collaboration with these customers, we provide eegiing and manufacturing expertise for the deaighdevelopment of specialized printers.

Banking and POS: Our banking and POS printersidechundreds of optional configurations that casdlected to meet particular customer needs
believe that this is a significant competitive sgth, as it allows us to satisfy a wide varietypoifhting applications that our customers requéstthe
banking market, we sell printers that are used amgkb, credit unions and other financial instituicile print and/or validate receipts at bank t
stations. In the POS market, we sell several nsodprinters utilizing inkjet, thermal and impamtnting technology. Our printers are used prityaiy
retailers in the restaurant (including fine dinimgsual dining, and fast food), hospitality, anécalty retail industries to print receipts for somers
validate checks, or print on linerless labels d¢reotinserted media. In the POS market, we primaell our products through a network of domestid
international distributors and resellers. We usedrdernal sales force to manage sales throughdmtiibutors and resellers, as well as to solieies
directly from end-users. In the banking market, prienarily sell our products directly to entser banks and financial institutions through tee af ou
internal sales force.

Lottery: We supply lottery printers to Lottomattis GTECH Corporation (“GTECH”"), our largest custnrand the world largest provider of lotte
terminals. These printers are designed for highirae, highspeed printing of lottery tickets for various laft@pplications. Sales of our lottery prodi
are made directly to GTECH and managed by an iatesaies representative.

Casino and gaming: We sell several models of @rintised in slot machines and video lottery tertitizat print tickets or receipts instead of isg
coins at casinos, racetracks and other gaming lestatents worldwide. These printers utilize thekmianting technology and can print tickets or rigts
in monochrome or twaolor (depending upon the model), and offer variotier features such as jam resistant bezels aludlgoort interface that alloy
casinos to print coupons and promotions. In aoldjtive sell printers using thermal and impact priqptechnology for use in norasino establishmen
including game types such as Amusements with Priz&¥/P”), Skills with Prizes (“SWP”), Video lotteryterminals (“VLT"), Fixed Odds Bettin
Terminals (“FOBT") and other offremise gaming type machines around the world. S&leour products primarily to (1) slot machine mtatturers
who incorporate our printers into slot machines,andurn, sell completed slot machines directlycasinos and other gaming establishments ar
through regional distributors (four in the Unitetht®s and Asia, one in Europe and Africa, two itinAmerica and one in Australia). We also maintz
dedicated internal sales force to solicit salemfsbot manufacturers and casinos, as well as tagesales through our distributors.
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TSG

Through TSG, we proactively market the sale of camsble products (including inkjet cartridges, rinbpreceipt paper and other transaction supg
replacement parts and maintenance services foofatlur products and certain competioproducts. Our maintenance services include ée G
extended warranties, multi-year maintenance corsra-hour guaranteed replacement product sewafled TransAct Xpres8M , and other repe
services for our printers. Within the United Ssatere provide repair services through our eastegion service center in Ithaca, NY and our we:
region service center in Las Vegas, NV. Intermally, we provide repair services through our Eeap service center located in Doncaster, U
Kingdom, and through partners strategically locatemiind the world.

We also provide customers with telephone salestaddnical support, and a personal account reprahemtto handle orders, shipping and ger
information. Technical and sales support persoretive training on all of our manufactured pradwmnd our services.

In addition to personalized telephone and techrdopport, we also market and sell consumable ptedi&hours a day, seven days a week, via oure
webstore www.transactsupplies.com

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials

We design our products to optimize product perforoea quality, reliability and durability. Thesesitgns combine cost efficient materials, sourcing
assembly methods with high standards of workmansBigring 2009, we completed a program to tranfferl assembly for approximately 70% of
total printer production to a thirgarty contract manufacturer in China. We contitu@erform final assembly for the remaining 30%oaf products i
our Ithaca, NY facility largely on a configure-tmeder basis using components and subassembliehdlvat been sourced from vendors and cor
manufacturers around the world.

We procure component parts and subassemblies éonubke assembly of our products in Ithaca, NYiti€l component parts and subassembilies in
inkjet, thermal and impact printheads, printingtitigt mechanisms, power supplies, motors, injectiaided plastic parts, circuit boards and electi
components, which are obtained from domestic aneidgo suppliers at competitive prices. As a resfithe majority of our production being perforn
by our contract manufacturer, purchases of compopants have declined while purchases of falfsembled printers produced by our con
manufacturer have increased. We typically strovengintain more than one source for our componaris psubassemblies and fully assembled print
reduce the risk of parts shortages or unavailgbildowever, we could experience temporary disauptf certain suppliers ceased doing business us!
as described below.

We currently buy substantially all of our thermalnp mechanisms, an important component of ourntfaérprinters, and fully assembled printers
several of our printer models, from one foreigntcact manufacturer. Although we believe that ott@mtract manufacturers could provide similar thal
print mechanisms or fully assembled printers, omgarable terms, a change in contract manufactemrsl cause a delay in manufacturing and pos
loss of sales, which may have a material adverfeetebn our operating results. Although we do nate a supply agreement with our foreign con
manufacturer, our relationship with them remain®rg and we have no reason to believe that thel distontinue their supply of thermal pi
mechanisms to us during 2011 or that their termsstwill be any less favorable than they have bestorically.

Hewlett-Packard Company (“HPT3 the sole supplier of inkjet cartridges that ased in all of our inkjet printers. In additionewalso sell a substani
number of HP inkjet cartridges as a consumableymbthrough TSG. Although other inkjet cartridgleat are compatible with the HP inkjet cartridge
available, the loss of the supply of HP inkjet delges could have a material adverse effect on twthsale of our inkjet printers and TSG consun
products. Our relationship with HP remains strangl we have no reason to believe that HP will ditnae its supply of inkjet cartridges to us ort
their terms to us will be any less favorable thlagythave been historically. The inkjet cartridges purchase from HP are used not only in our i
printers for the banking and POS market, but alsather manufacturer’s printing devices across isg\ather markets.

Patents and Proprietary Information

We have significantly expanded our patent portfgiiece 2002, and expect to continue to do so irfuhee. We also believe our patent portfolio d
provide additional opportunities to license ourlkgctual property in the future. We hold 25 UditStates and 26 foreign patents and have 14
States and 28 foreign patent applications pendartaming to our products. The duration of theagepts range from 7 to 15 years. The expiratioany
individual patent would not have a significant niagaimpact on our business. We regard certain

manufacturing processes and designs to be proprietal attempt to protect them through employeethind-party nondisclosure agreements and sit
means. It may be possible for unauthorized thadigs to copy certain portions of our productsooreverse engineer or otherwise obtain and useut
detriment, information that we regard as proprietavioreover, the laws of some foreign countriesndt afford the same protection to our proprie
rights as do the laws of the United States. Tharele no assurance that legal protections relied by the Company to protect our proprietary pos
will be adequate or that our competitors will nodépendently develop technologies that are sulisligrequivalent or superior to our technologies.
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Seasonality

Retailers typically reduce purchases of new POSpetent in the fourth quarter due to the increasellime of consumer transactions in that hol
period, and our sales of printers in the POS mahistorically have increased in the third quarted alecreased in the fourth quarter. Simili
installations of lottery terminals are typicallydreed in the fourth quarter, resulting in decreass#ds of lottery printers.

Working Capital

Inventory, accounts receivable, and accounts paykavels, payment terms, and where applicablermepolicies are in accordance with the ger
practices of the industry and standard businessegioes. See also Iltem 7. Managensebiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionl &®esults ¢
Operations.

Certain Customers

GTECH is our most significant customer. We cuillgehive an ongoing OEM purchase agreement, as adend-ebruary 2006 (the “GTECH Thermal
Printer Agreement”) with GTECH that provides foetbale of thermal on-line lottery printers and spaarts, at fixed prices, through June 28, 20h2. |
December 2009, we signed a new five-year agreeaffattive November 20, 2009, with GTECH (the “GTEGIdw Thermal Printer

Agreement”). Under the terms of the new agreemeatwill provide GTECH with their next generatidretmal lottery printers for various lottery
applications. The terms of the new agreement regbhat GTECH exclusively purchase all of its regoients for thermal on-line lottery printers from u
and that we exclusively sell such printers to GTECHe exclusivity period will extend for four yaairom the start of production of the new printer,
which began in January 2011.

Sales to GTECH and other customers representingdt@#@re of our total net sales were as follows:

Year ended December

2010 2009 2008
GTECH 12% 19% 28%
Customer A 14% 10% *
Customer E * 12% *

* Customers represented less than 10% of totadalet

Backlog
Our backlog of firm orders was approximately $12,0800 as of February 28, 2011, compared to $6,9064s of February 26, 2010. Basec
customers’ current delivery requirements, we expeship our entire current backlog during 2011.

Competition

The market for transactiomased printers is extremely competitive, and weeekpuch competition to continue in the future. epete with a number
companies, many of which have greater financighnecal and marketing resources than us. We bebevebility to compete successfully depends
number of factors both within and outside our colntincluding durability, reliability, quality, dégn capability, product customization, price, cusé
support, success in developing new products, maturfag expertise and capacity, supply of compompamts and materials, strategic relationships
suppliers, the timing of new product introductidns us and our competitors, general market, econ@mdt political conditions and, in some cases
uniqueness of our products.

In the banking and POS market, our major compeist@pson America, Inc., which holds a dominantkeaposition of the POS markets into which
sell. We also compete, to a much lesser externih Wiansaction Printer Group, Star Micronics Amaritnc., Citizen --CBM America Corporatiol
Pertech Resources, Inc., Addmaster, and SamsuradBix Certain competitors of ours have greatearfoial resources, lower costs attributable to hr
volume production and sometimes offer lower prites us.

In the lottery market (consisting principally of -tine lottery transaction printing), we hold a l&sgl position, based largely on our lotgym purchas
agreements with GTECH. We compete in this markeet solely on our ability to provide specializeastom-engineered products to GTECH.

In the casino and gaming market (consisting priaitypof slot machine and video lottery terminalnsaction printing), we compete with sev
companies including FutureLogic, Inc., Nanoptixc.InCustom Engineering SPA and others. Certairowf products sold for casino and gan
applications compete based upon our ability to jl@highly specialized products, custom engineeaing ongoing technical support.

The TSG business is highly fragmented, and we ctenpéth numerous competitors of various sizes,uditlg internet resellers, depending on
geographic area.
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Our strategy for competing in our markets is totoure to develop new products and product line resitsns, to increase our geographic me
penetration, to take advantage of strategic relatigps, and to lower product costs by sourcingagemroducts overseas. Although we believe tha
products, operations and relationships provide rapsditive foundation, there can be no assuranceweawill compete successfully in the future.
addition, our products utilize certain inkjet, ttrl and impact printing technology. If other teclugies, or variations to existing technologiesfevi
evolve or become available to us, it is possibé the would incorporate these technologies intopyoducts. Alternatively, if such technologies aéq
evolve or become available to our competitors,moducts could become obsolete, which would hasigrificant negative impact on our business.

Research and Development Activities

Research, development, and engineering expenditepessent costs incurred in the experimental lwori@ory sense aimed at discovery and/or applia
of new knowledge in developing a new product orcpes, or in bringing about significant improvemantan existing product or process. We s
approximately $3,000,000, $2,788,000 and $2,942i0@010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, on engingerilesign and product development effor
connection with specialized engineering and detigntroduce new products and to customize or imgrexisting products.

Costs incurred in researching and developing a cbengoftware product are charged to expense tectinological feasibility has been establishedtie
product. Once technological feasibility is estsidid, all material software costs are capitalizétiinv Intangible and other assets in our consodic
balance sheet until the product is available faregal release to customers. Judgment is requirddtermining when technological feasibility ofraguc
is established. We have determined that technedbdeasibility for our software products is readhafter all highrisk development issues have b
documented in a formal detailed plan design. Thertization of these costs will be included in cadtrevenue over the estimated life of
product. During 2010 we began the development néw software product that enables casino customeepsint coupons and promotions at the
machine. As of December 31, 2010, we have capial$130,000 of developments costs for such sodtwthere has been no amortization of capita
software development costs.

Environment
We are not aware of any material noncompliance fatteral, state and local provisions that have te®acted or adopted regulating the dischar
materials into the environment, or otherwise ratato the protection of the environment.

Employees
As of February 28, 2011, TransAct and our subsieagmployed 124 persons, of whom 123 weretfule and one was a temporary employee. No
our employees are unionized, and we consider datigeships with our employees to be good.

Financial Information About Geographic Areas
For financial information regarding our geograplaieas see Note 16 Geographic Area Information in the Notes to the &idated Financi
Statements. Risks attendant to our foreign operatare described in Iltem 1A below.

Available Information

We make available free of charge through our iewebsitewww.transact-tech.com, our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly repori=orm 109,
current reports on Form I8; and all amendments to those reports as sooranably practicable after such material is eeatally filed with o
furnished to the SEC. You may read and copy antenads filed with the SEC at the SECPublic Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Wagstrin DC
20549. You may obtain information on the operatofrthe Public Reference Room by calling the SEQ-800-SEC0330. This information is al:
available at www.sec.gov. The reference to thesesite addresses does not constitute incorporatjoreference of the information contained on
websites and should not be considered part offithésiment.

We maintain a Code of Business Conduct that indwie code of ethics that is applicable to all eyeées, including our Chief Executive Officer, Cl
Financial Officer and Controller. This Code, whigguires continued observance of high ethicaldgteds such as honesty, integrity and compliancl
the law in the conduct of our business, is avadldbl public access on our internet website. Aryspn may request a copy of our Code of Bus
Conduct free of charge by calling (203) 859-6800.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Investors should carefully consider the risks, utadeties and other factors described below, a$ agebther disclosures in ManagemsriDiscussion ar
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiiems, because they could have a material adedieset on our business, financial condition, opieg
results, and growth prospects. The risks descril@dw are not the only ones facing our Compangdifional risks not known to us now or that
currently deem immaterial may also impair our basgioperations.

We assume no obligation (and specifically disclaimy such obligation) to update these Risk Factoeng other forwardeoking statements containec
this Annual Report to reflect actual results, chemim assumptions or other factors affecting socldrd-looking statements, except as required Wy la
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Our operating results and financial condition may fluctuate.
Our operating results and financial condition miactiiate from quarter to quarter and year to year @e likely to continue to vary due to a numbk
factors, many of which are not within our contrdfi.our operating results do not meet the expemtatiof securities analysts or investors, who maive
their expectations by extrapolating data from rédestorical operating results, the market priceoof common stock will likely decline. Fluctuat®ir
our operating results and financial condition maydiie to a number of factors, including, but nwitied to, those identified throughout this “Riskckas’
section:

« market acceptance of our products, both domestieall internationally;

« development of new competitive printers by others;

e OUur responses to price competition;

« our level of research and development activities;

« changes in the amount that we spend to developjracor license new products, consumables, teclgiedoor businesses;

« changes in the amount we spend to promote our ptedund services;

« changes in the cost of satisfying our warrantygdilons and servicing our installed base of prajter

« delays between our expenditures to develop and eharéw or enhanced printers and consumables andeheration of sales from the

products;

« the geographic distribution of our sales;

« availability of third-party components at reasorgices;

« general economic and industry conditions, includagnges in interest rates affecting returns om d¢edances and investments, that a

customer demant
« severe weather events (such as hurricanes) thatiearmpt or interrupt the operation of our custosner suppliers facilities; and
« changes in accounting rules.

Due to all of the foregoing factors, and the othlisks discussed in this report, quartemtgarter comparisons of our operating results maybeoal
indicator of future performance.

Werely on resellersto sell our products and services.
We use a variety of distribution channels, inclgdidEMs and distributors, to market our productse Wvay be adversely impacted by any conflicts
could arise between and among our various salemela

Our dependence upon resellers exposes us to nusnésks, including:

« loss of channel and the ability to bring new prdduo market;

« concentration of credit risk, including disruptiondistribution should the resellers’ financial clition deteriorate;
« reduced visibility to end user demand and pricBspes which makes forecasting more difficult;

« resellers leveraging their buying power to chargetérms of pricing, payment and product delivetyesiules; and
« direct competition should a reseller decide to nf@acture printers internally or source printers frarnompetitor.

We cannot guarantee that resellers will not reddedgy or eliminate purchases from us, which cdwdde a material adverse effect upon the busi
consolidated results of operations and financiaddon.

General economic conditions and the related deterioration in the global business environment could have a material adverse effect on our business,
operating results and financial condition.

Global consumer confidence has eroded amidst coaa®rer, among other things, declining asset vaindlation, volatility in energy costs, geopoliil
issues, the availability and cost of credit, risimemployment, and the stability and solvency péfficial institutions, financial markets, businessiee
sovereign nations. These concerns have slowed Igiabaomic growth and have resulted in recessiomimerous countries, including many of thos
North America, Europe and Asia, where the Compamgsdsubstantially all of its business. As theseneroc conditions continue to persist, or if t
worsen, a number of negative effects on our busineald result, including customers or potentiatomers reducing or delaying orders, the insolveri
key suppliers which could result in production gslahe inability of customers to obtain creditddhe insolvency of one or more customers. Anyhebi
effects could impact our ability to effectively neage inventory levels and collect receivables, ereatibsorbed costs due to lower net sales, amaabétfy
decrease our net sales and profitability includimge-downs of assets.

In the lottery market, we have been dependent on sales to one large customer; the loss of this customer or reduction in orders from this customer could
materially affect our sales.

We expect that sales to one large customer wiltisoa to represent a significant percentage oframtirsales for the foreseeable future. A reductietay
or cancellation in orders from this customer, idahg reductions or delays due to market, econooricompetitive conditions in the industries in wh
we serve, could have a material adverse effect opomesults of operations.
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Our success will depend on our ability to sustain and manage growth.

As part of our business strategy, we intend to ymira growth strategy. Assuming this growth occitrsyill require the expansion of distributi
relationships in international markets, the sudegstevelopment and marketing of new products far existing and new markets, expanded cust
service and support, and the continued implememtatnd improvement of our operational, financial ammnagement information systems.

To the extent that we seek growth through acqaissti our ability to manage our growth will also deg@ on our ability to integrate businesses that
previously operated independently. We may not ble o achieve this integration without encountgrififficulties or experiencing the loss of |
employees, customers or suppliers. It may beddiffito design and implement effective financiahtols for combined operations and difference
existing controls for each business may result@akmesses that require remediation when the finhoontrols and reporting functions are combinéd
we pursue acquisitions, we may incur legal, acdagrnand other transaction related expenses foracessful acquisition attempts that could adve
affect our results of operations in the period mch they are incurred.

There can be no assurance that we will be abladoessfully implement our growth strategy, or tlvatcan successfully manage expanded operatior
the Company expands, we may from time to time egpee constraints that will adversely affect ouiligbto satisfy customer demand in a tim
fashion. Failure to manage growth effectively coatlversely affect our results of operations andrfcial condition.

We compete in highly competitive markets, which are likely to become more competitive. Competitors may be able to respond more quickly to new or
emerging technology and changesin customer requirements.

We face significant competition in developing amdlisg our printers, transaction supplies and s&wi Principal competitors have substantial marg
financial, development and personnel resourcesrefimin competitive, we believe we must continuprtovide:

« Technologically advanced printers that satisfyuber demands,
« Superior customer service,

« High levels of quality and reliability, and

« Dependable and efficient distribution networks.

We cannot ensure we will be able to compete sufidsagainst current or future competitors. Iresed competition in printers or supplies may res
price reductions, lower gross profit margins ansisl@f market share, and could require increaseddsmg on research and development, sales
marketing and customer support. Some competitans make strategic acquisitions or establish codperaelationships with suppliers or companies
produce complementary products. Any of these faatould reduce our earnings.

We have outsourced a large portion of the assembly of our printersto a contract manufacturer and will be dependent on them for the manufacturing of
such printers. A failure by this contract manufacturer, or any disruption in such manufacturing, may adversely affect our business results.

In an effort to achieve additional cost savings apdration benefits, we have continued to outsotireemanufacturing and assembly of our printera
contract manufacturer in China.

However, to the extent we rely on a thpdrty service provider for manufacturing serviogs,may incur increased business continuity ridk& will na
longer be able to exercise control over the assgrobicertain of our printers or any related openasi or processes, including the internal con
associated with operations and processes condantbthe quality of our products assembled by thgraot manufacturer. If we are unable to effedyi
develop and implement our outsourcing strategyveg not realize cost structure efficiencies andaperating and financial results could be mates
adversely affected.

In addition, if the contract manufacturer experiendusiness difficulties or fails to meet our mactiiring needs, then we may be unable to
production requirements, may lose revenue and roapeable to maintain relationships with our costes. Without the contract

manufacturer continuing to manufacture our prodacts the continuing operation of the contract maauwifrers facility, we will have limited means 1
the final assembly of a majority of our printerstiume are able to secure the manufacturing cajiphlélt another facility or develop an alterna
manufacturing facility, which could be costly amti¢ consuming and have a material adverse effecuoperating and financial results.

The increased elements of risk that arise from aotidg certain operating processes in foreign glictions may lead to an increase in reputatiorsi. ri
Although we carry business interruption insurareedver lost revenue and profits in an amount wesitler adequate, this insurance does not cov

possible situations. In addition, the businessrmiption insurance would not compensate us fotdase of opportunity and potential adverse imphotf
short-term and long-term, on relations with oursérig customers resulting from our inability to guee products for them.
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The contract manufacturer has access to our inteiéproperty, which increases the risk of infengent or misappropriation of this intellectual pray.

We source some of our component parts and consumable products from sole source suppliers; any disruptions may impact our ability to manufacture
and sell our products.
A disruption in the supply of such component partd consumable products could have a material saelaffect on our operations and financial results.

We sell a significant portion of our products internationally and purchase important components from foreign suppliers. These circumstances create a
number of risks.

We sell a significant amount of our products totooeers outside the United States. Shipments toriatenal customers are expected to contint
account for a material portion of net sales. Resss0ciated with sales and purchases outside thedJgfates include:

« Fluctuating foreign currency rates could restrades, or increase costs of purchasing, in fore@mtries.

« Foreign governments may impose burdensome tagjfifstas, taxes, trade barriers or capital flow retsdns.

« Political and economic instability may reduce dethéor our products or put our foreign assets &t ris

« Restrictions on the export or import of technologsty reduce or eliminate the ability to sell in arghase from certain markets.

« Potentially limited intellectual property proteatiin certain countries, such as China, may limibrtese against infringing products or cause
refrain from selling in certain geographic terriés.

We face risks associated with manufacturing forecasts.

If we fail to predict our manufacturing requirememiccurately, we could incur additional costs grezlence manufacturing delays, which could cau
to lose orders or customers and result in lowesakts. We currently use a rolling frnth forecast based primarily on our anticipatemtipct orders ar
our product order history to help determine oumregments for components and materials. It is wergortant that we accurately predict both the ded
for our products and the ledire required to obtain the necessary componerdsan materials. Lead times for materials and camepts that we ord
vary significantly and depend on factors such asstbecific supplier, the size of the order, conttaans, and demand for each component at a giver.
If we underestimate our requirements, we may hasdequate manufacturing capacity or inventory, tiziculd interrupt manufacturing of our prodt
and result in delays in shipments and net saleselbverestimate our requirements, we could hawesxinventory of parts. In addition, delays in
manufacturing of our products could cause us te tslers or customers.

Our revenue and profitability depend on our ability to continue to develop, on a timely basis, new technologies which are free from hardware or
software anomalies and cannot be fraudulently manipulated:

The success of a newly introduced technology, sisgbrinting coupons and promotions at the slot im&chsing our EPICENTRAL™ Print System, is
dependent on our casino customers' acceptancelofschnology. While we have designed our EPICENIR Print System to support our customers'
existing investment in our Epic 950® thermal caginiaiters, such acceptance may nevertheless oilly gmadually over time or not at all. Delays in
acceptance by our customers of new technologiesatagrsely affect our operations.

Our success depends upon our ability to adaptapattlities and processes to meet the demand®dfiping new and innovative products. Because our
newer products are generally more technologicalphssticated than those we have produced in thie wasmust continually refine our capabilities to
meet the needs of our product innovation. If wenca efficiently adapt our infrastructure to meet heeds of our product innovations in a timely n&n
our business could be negatively impacted.

We depend on key personnel, the loss of which could materially impact our business.

Our future success will depend in significant pgron the continued service of certain key managéieth other personnel and our continuing abili
attract and retain highly qualified managerialht@ical and sales and marketing personnel. Therdoeano assurance that we will be able to recnd
retain such personnel. The loss of either BarSlduldman, the Company's Chairman of the Board andf &Executive Officer, or Steven A. DeMarti
the Companys President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer &edretary, or the loss of certain groups of keplegees, could have a material adv
effect on our results of operations.

If we are unable to enforce our patents or if it is determined that we infringe patents held by others it could damage our business. Prosecuting ar
defending patent lawsuits is very expensive. Wecaramitted to aggressively asserting and defendimgtechnology and related intellectual prope
which we have spent a significant amount of momegévelop. These factors could cause us to beaovobred in new patent litigation in the future.é
expense of prosecuting or defending these futussuas could also have a material adverse effecbunbusiness, financial condition and result
operations.

If we were to lose a patent lawsuit in which anotharty is asserting that our products infringepiégéents, we would likely be prohibited from markg
those products and could also be liable for sigaift damages. Either or both of these results mag b material adverse effect on our business)dial
condition and results of operations. If we loseatept lawsuit in which we are claiming that anotbarty’s products are




Table of Content

infringing our patents and thus, are unable to mef@ur patents, it may have a material adverszeéfn our business, financial condition and resoi
operations. In addition to disputes relating te Halidity or alleged infringement of other partigghts, we may become involved in disputes regatic
our assertion of our own intellectual property tgghWwhether we are defending the assertion ofl@dlal property rights against us or asserting
intellectual property rights against others, irgetual property litigation can be complex, cosfisotracted, and highly disruptive to business dipama by
diverting the attention and energies of manageraedtkey technical personnel. Plaintiffs in inteflest property cases often seek injunctive reliaf] e
measures of damages in intellectual property liggaare complex and often subjective or uncertd@iimus, any adverse determinations in this tyf
litigation could subject us to significant liabiés and costs. During the course of these lawshésee may be public announcements of the resu
hearings, motions, and other interim proceedingdemelopments in the litigation. If securities as&$ or investors perceive these results to betivegd
could harm the market price of our stock.

Theinability to protect intellectual property could harm our reputation, and our competitive position may be materially damaged.

Our intellectual property is valuable and provideswith certain competitive advantages. Copyrighésents, trade secrets and contracts are usedter
these proprietary rights. Despite these precautibmsay be possible for third parties to copy aspef our products or, without authorization, tatar
and use information which we regard as trade secret

Infringement on the proprietary rights of others could put us at a competitive disadvantage, and any related litigation could be time consuming and
costly.

Third parties may claim that we violated their Iigtetual property rights. To the extent of a vi@atof a third partys patent or other intellectual prope
right, we may be prevented from operating our bessnas planned and may be required to pay dantagaistain a license, if available, or to use a non-
infringing method, if possible, to accomplish owjextives. Any of these claims, with or without fihecould result in costly litigation and diverte
attention of key personnel. If such claims are essful, they could result in costly judgments dtiements.

Our stock price may fluctuate significantly.
The market price of our common stock could fluatusignificantly in response to variations in qudyteperating results and other factors, such as:

« changes in our business, operations or prospects;

« developments in our relationships with our custa@ner

« announcements of new products or services by by our competitors;
« announcement or completion of acquisitions by usyoour competitors;
« changes in existing or adoption of additional goveent regulations;

« unfavorable or reduced analyst coverage; and

« prevailing domestic and international market anaheenic conditions.

In addition, the stock market has experienced Bt price fluctuations in recent years. Broadrket fluctuations, general economic conditions
specific conditions in the industries in which weecate may adversely affect the market price ofcounmon stock.

Limited trading volume of our capital stock may contribute to its price volatility.

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global k¢ar During the year ended December 31, 2010atlerage daily trading volume for «
common stock as reported by the NASDAQ Global Mavkas approximately 19,000 shares. We are uncevihether a more active trading marke
our common stock will develop. In addition, manyeéstment banks no longer find it profitable toyyde securities research on micro-cap and sosll-
companies. If any analyst were to discontinue caye of our common stock, our trading volume mayfusther reduced. As a result, relatively st
trades may have a significant impact on the mapkiee of our common stock, which could increasewbkatility and depress the price of our comr
stock.

Future sales of our common stock may cause our stock price to decline.

In the future, we may sell additional shares of caimmon stock in public or private offerings, and may also issue additional shares of our con
stock to finance future acquisitions. Shares af @ammon stock are also available for future saiespant to stock options that we have granted t
employees, and in the future we may grant additiettak options and other forms of equity compeinsato our employees. Sales of our common ¢
or the perception that such sales could occur rdagraely affect prevailing market prices for shasesur common stock and could impair our abili
raise capital through future offerings.

If market conditions deteriorate or future results of operations are less than expected, a valuation allowance may be required for all or a portion of our
deferred tax assets.

We currently have significant deferred tax assetsch may be used to reduce taxable income inuhed. We assess the realization of these deféared
assets on a quarterly basis, and if we determateittis more likely than not that some portiortlodse assets will not be realized,
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an income tax valuation allowance is recordedndfket conditions deteriorate or future resultsmérations are less than expected, or there is@gehto
applicable tax rules, future assessments may riesaltietermination that it is more likely than tiwat some or all of our net deferred tax assetsat
realizable. As a result, we may need to establigal@ation allowance for all or a portion of outt deferred tax assets, which may have a matenadrad
effect on our business, results of operations arah€ial condition.

We cannot provide any assurance that current laws, or any laws enacted in the future, will not have a material adverse effect on our business.

Our operations are subject to laws, rules, reguiatiincluding environmental regulations, governtpaticies and other requirements in each of the
jurisdictions in which we conduct business. Chanigdaws, rules, regulations, policies or requiesits could result in the need to modify our prod
and could affect the demand for our products, whigly have an adverse impact on our future operagisigits. If we do not comply with applicable Ia
rules and regulations we could be subject to carstisliabilities and our business may be adversepakcted.

Our business could be adversely affected by actual or threatened terrorist attacks or the related heightened security measures, military actions and other
efforts to combat terrorism.

Our business could be adversely affected by acu#hreatened terrorist attacks or the relatedtteitged security measures, military actions andr
efforts to combat terrorism. It is possible thatrdrist attacks could be directed at importanatimns for the gaming industry. Heightened sec
measures and other efforts to combat terrorism atsy have an adverse effect on the gaming indistmeducing tourism. Any of these developm
could also negatively affect the general econony @nsumer confidence. Any downturn in the econamin the gaming industry in particular co
reduce demand for our products and adversely affecbusiness and results of operations. In amditieightened security measures may cause ¢
governments to restrict the import/export of goadsich may have an adverse effect on our abilitgug/sell goods.

Additional risks and uncertainties not presentlypwn to us or that we currently believe to be immatelso may adversely impact our business. St
any risks or uncertainties develop into actual évethese developments could have material adwdfeets on our business, financial condition,
results of operations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
Not applicable

Item 2. Properties.

Our corporate headquarters is currently locatedamden, CT. Our global engineering, assembly astieen region service facility is located in Ith;
NY. We also maintain a facility in Las Vegas, Nhat serves as our global printer sales headquatetsvestern region service center. In additiog
maintain an impact printhead manufacturing and irefaility in New Britain, CT. We believe that our facilities generally are in dgomondition
adequately maintained and suitable for their preaed currently contemplated uses.

Our principal facilities as of December 31, 2016 ksted below:

Size Owned or

(Approx. Sg. Leased Lease Expiration
Location Operations Conducted Ft.) Date
Hamden, Connectict Executive offices and TSG sales off 11,10¢ Leasec April 23, 2017
Ithaca, New York Research, design, assembly and service fa 73,90( Leasec June 30, 201
Las Vegas, Nevac Service center and printer sales headqua 13,70( Leasec December 31, 201
New Britain, ConnecticL Printhead manufacturing and repair faci 11,50( Leasec April 1, 2012
Doncaster, United Kingdol Sales office and service cen 2,80( Leasec August 1, 201¢
Georgia and New Yor Two regional sales office 30C Leasec Various
Macau, China Sales office 18C Leased June 30, 2011

113,48(

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
None.

Item 4. (Removed and Reserved).
PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edqty Securities.
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Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global kéaunder the symbol TACT. As of February 28, 2ahgre were 481 holders of record of the
common stock. The high and low sales prices ottmamon stock reported during each quarter of #sesended December 31, 2010 and 2009 were as
follows:

Year Endec Year Endec
December 31, 201 December 31, 200
High Low High Low
First Quarte! $ 78z $ 6.28 $ 474 $ 1.6C
Second Quarte 7.9C 6.8¢ 5.9¢ 2.3t
Third Quartel 8.1¢€ 6.8: 5.9¢ 3.8C
Fourth Quarte 9.7t 7.5C 6.94 4.7t

No dividends on common stock have been declaredvendo not anticipate declaring dividends in theeéeeable future. Our credit agreement witt
Bank prohibits the payment of cash dividends onammmon stock for the term of the agreement.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

On May 27, 2010, our Board of Directors approvedeav stock repurchase program (the “Stock RepurcRasgram”). Under the Stock Repurch:
Program, we are authorized to repurchase up t@®@MO0 of our outstanding shares of common stawk time to time in the open market over a three-
year period ending May 27, 2013, depending on ntadeditions, share price and other factors.

During the fourth quarter of 2010, we made no repases of common stock. As of December 31, 20&Mhave repurchased a total of 22,3B@res ¢
common stock for approximately $177,000 , at amaye price of $7.95per share, under the Stock Repurchase Program.

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares the cumulative to&bm on the Company’Common Stock from December 31, 2005 through Dbeerdl, 2010, wit
the CRSP Total Return Index for the Nasdaq StockkbtaU.S.) and the Nasdagq Computer Manufactureck3tIndex. The graph assumes that $10(
invested on December 31, 2005 in each of the Cogip@ommon stock, the CRSP Total Return Index folNasdaqg Stock Market (U.S.) and the Na:
Computer Manufacturer Stocks Index, and that aiddinds were reinvested.
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COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN AMONG
TRANSACT TECHNOLOGIES INCORPORATED COMMON STOCK,
THE CRSP TOTAL RETURN INDEX FOR THE NASDAQ STOCK MA RKET (U.S.),
AND THE NASDAQ COMPUTER MANUFACTURER STOCKS INDEX

$250.00 —a— TransAct Technologies Incorporated Common Stock

—a— Total Return Index for the Nasdag Stock Market (US)

—— Nasdag Computer Manufacturer Stocks Index

$200.00
$150.00
$100.00
$0.00 . . . .
12/31/2005 12/31/2006 12/31/2007 12/31/2008 12/31/2009 12/31/2010
12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09 12/31/10
TransAct Technologies Incorporated
Common Stocl $ 100.0C $ 105.0¢ $ 60.6: $ 58.1C $ 87.8t $ 119.2¢
CRSP Total Return Index for the Nasda
Stock Market (U.S. $ 100.0C $ 109.8: % 119.1¢  $ 5741 $ 825: $ 97.9¢
Nasdag Computer Manufacturer Sto
Index $ 100.0C $ 102.1:  $ 149.4:  $ 62.7¢ $ 137.8¢  $ 196.7:
Item 6. Selected Financial Data (in thousands, exgeper share amounts)
The following is summarized from our audited finahstatements of the past five years:
Year Ended December 3
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Consolidated Statement of Operations D
Net sales $ 63,19 $ 58,34¢ $ 62,200 $ 48,76¢ % 64,32¢
Gross profit 22,54¢ 18,82¢ 20,95( 15,99¢ 22,36t
Operating expenst 16,68’ 15,53: 19,08¢ 19,75 16,277
Operating income (los: 5,861 3,29¢ 1,861 (3,755 6,08¢
Net income (loss 3,90¢ 2,14( 1,44¢ (2,279 3,91¢
Net income (loss) per shai
Basic 0.42 0.2 0.1€ (0.29 0.41
Diluted 0.41 0.2t 0.1f (0.29 0.4C
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December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Consolidated Balance Sheet D¢
Total asset $ 4362 $ 34,89¢ $ 32,23: $ 30,41: $ 33,70¢
Working capital 25,52¢ 20,47 15,05: 11,33¢ 16,64
Shareholder equity 31,13 26,35¢ 23,28: 21,60¢ 24,29(

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations.
This discussion should be read in conjunction whth Consolidated Financial Statements and notestthe

Forward Looking Statements

Certain statements included in this report, inchgliwithout limitation statements in this Managerm®miscussion and Analysis of Financial Condi
and Results of Operations, which are not historfeats are “forward-looking statementsiithin the meaning of Section 27A of the Securietsof 193:
as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities BgehAct of 1934, as amended. Forwéodking statements generally can be identifiedHey dse ¢
forward-looking terminology, such as “may”, “will”, “expet, “intend”, "estimate”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “project” or “continue” or the negativ
thereof or other similar words. All forwardoking statements involve risks and uncertaintiesluding, but not limited to those listed in It of thi
Annual Report. Actual results may differ mateyiaffom those discussed in, or implied by, the fad-looking statements. The forwalabking
statements speak only as of the date of this regattwe assume no duty to update them.

Overview

During 2010, we again concentrated our efforts mwing overall revenue in our existing markets haparticular emphasis on gaining market shareéd
U.S. casino market. In addition, we also focusednereasing our gross margin and leveraging sockease to our operating income. We believ:
successfully achieved these objectives in 2010.indeased our overall sales 8% and our U.S. caaingogaming printer sales 24%, despite a decli
the replacement cycle of casino printers and acditfU.S. economy. Our printer shipments alsaeased 17% to almost 190,000 in 2010. In add
our gross margin, operating margin and earningsspare for 2010 each increased substantially fro692 We continued to generate positive cash
during 2010, as we increased our cash balancertosal$11,300,000 — a record high.

We continue to focus on sales growth in our coreketa (banking and POS, casino and gaming, lotaarg, TSG) to drive increased profitability. Dut
2010, our total net sales increased 8% to apprdeimn&63,194,000. See the table below for a breakdof our sales by market.

Year endec Year endec Change
(In thousands) December 31, 201 December 31, 200 $ %
Banking and PO! $ 14,52¢ 23.(% $ 16,69¢ 28.6% $ (2,167) (13.(%)
Casino and gamin 25,67¢ 40.€% 17,52¢ 30.(% 8,152 46.5%
Lottery 8,14 12.9% 9,551 16.4% (1,409 (14.€%)
TSG 14,84¢ 23.5% 14,57¢ 25.(% 27z 1.9%
Total net sales $ 63,19/ 100.(% $ 58,34¢ 100.(% $ 4,84¢ 8.3%

Sales of our banking and POS printers decreasedidi 210 compared to 2009. In the banking manketfocus mainly on supplying printers for us
bank teller stations at banks and financial instns primarily in the U.S. Opportunities in thartking market are project oriented and as a resul
banking printer sales can fluctuate significanagtoyear. During 2010, our banking printer sales desed 79% primarily due to an order not recu
in 2010 for a large banking customer who completgualoject in 2009. This decrease was somewhagtdffs the first year of volume sales of our Bar
® 2500 printer. In the POS market, we focus primarily on supplyjminters that print receipts or linerless labels ¢ostomers in the restaur:
hospitality and specialty retail markets. Salesoof POS printers increased 43% in 2010 largely tdua 121% increase in sales of our two prir
products for McDonalds — (1) the Ithac&8®00 thermal receipt/label printer, which is usetha POS terminal to print either a receipt atftioat counte
or a label at the grill station and (2) the Ithac@10 label printer, which is used to print labes¥cDonalds combined beverage initiative. Durk@j0
we benefited from increasing sales of printersbioth of these McDonald'initiatives, with the majority of the increaséated to the rollout of printers f
the new POS system in more than 14,000 of its Et@es. We expect the rollout to the U.S. stooesontinue into 2011, and as it nears completi
2011, we expect McDonalds to begin the rolloutsniniternational stores (totaling more than 18,6@0es).

Sales of our casino and gaming printers increa3é6l ith 2010 compared to 2009. In our casino andiggumarket, our focus lies primarily in supply
printers for use in slot machines at casinos awmeétracks, as well as in other gaming devices thiat pickets or receipts, worldwide. Sales in
international casino and gaming market grew fortttiel consecutive year in 2010. In fact, our intgional sales increased 63% from 2009, reprasg
more than half — or 64% - of our total worldwidesicen and gaming sales. This increase was led BA#hincrease in
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our thermal casino printer sales. The increasgalas to our international customers was primatilg to the sales of gaming machines into Italy,ra
the Italian government has approved gambling opesab install approximately 50,000 VLT games. c8ira substantial portion of these games
installed during 2010, we expect installations206d4.1 to be significantly lower than in 2010. Domesales of our casino and gaming printers in@e
24%, due largely to market share gains in the casiarket, as we believe the overall replacemeneayicslot machines was lower in 2010 as compav
20009.

In the lottery market, we continue to hold a legdaosition based on our long-term purchase agreewitnGTECH, our largest customer and the warld’
largest provider of lottery terminals. GTECH haeb our customer since 1995, and we continue tataiaia good relationship with them. In 2008
expanded our longtanding relationship with GTECH by executing a nexclusive purchase agreement to develop and suppin with their ne;
generation online thermal lottery printer. Purdu@nthe new agreement, GTECH will exclusively ghase all of its requirements for thermal lore
lottery printers from us and we will exclusivelyllssuch printers to GTECH for four years from thars of production of the new printer, which ocac

in January 2011. This new agreement extends datiaeship with GTECH through at least 2014. Cuthg we fulfill substantially all of GTECH
printer requirements for lottery terminal instalbats and upgrades worldwide. During 2010, totahtpr sales to GTECH decreased approximately
compared to 2009. Our sales to GTECH each yeadiegetly dependent on the timing and number of mew upgraded lottery terminal installati
GTECH performs. Our sales to GTECH are not indreadf GTECH's overall business or revenue.

Our TransAct Services Group, which sells servieplacement parts and consumable products, incluaiogipt paper, ribbons and inkjet cartrid
continues to offer a growth opportunity and reagrrevenue stream for TransAct. TSG revenue coatirnto increase in 2010, rising 2% from 2
primarily due to higher sales of inkjet cartridgesnew and existing customers, as well as an iseréa service revenue from our new paper te
services program. Companies who produce and sefiuzmable items that are used in our printers, asgbaper, utilize this new service for a fee tee
their product qualified for use in our printers.

Operationally, both our gross margin and operatiraggin showed marked improvement from 2009. Du@l6g0, our gross margin increased to 3t
compared to 32.3% in 2009 and our operating margireased to 9.3% in 2010 compared to 5.6% in 2@&h our gross margin and operating me
increased due primarily to higher sales volume daetbwith an increase in sales of contract manufadt products with lower overall product cc
including lower labor costs, resulting from the mowef production for the majority of our products ddow cost contract manufacturer in China
addition, we also experienced a more favorablessaig as we sold more higher margin casino pripteducts and fewer lower margin banking printe
2010 compared to 2009.

We reported net income of $3,904,000 and net incperediluted share of $0.41 for 2010, compareddbimcome of $2,140,000 and net income
diluted share of $0.23 in 2009. In terms of cdskvffor 2010, we generated $2,132,000 of cash fogarations, utilized $1,107,000 of cash for ca
expenditures and we finished the year with a red¢ogth $11,285,000 of cash and no debt on our belaheet as of December 31, 2010. Overal
exited 2010 financially stronger than we enteredith over $11,000,000 of cash, no debt outstajdimd over $25,000,000 of working capital.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees management to make estimates, judgmen
assumptions that affect both balance sheet itemisrexome statement categories. Such estimategudgdhents are based upon historical experienc
certain assumptions that are believed to be reasoma the particular circumstances. We evaluate assumptions on an ongoing basis by comp
actual results with our estimates. Actual resuléy differ from the original estimates.

The following accounting policies are those that kadieve to be most critical in the preparationoofr financial statements. These items ut
assumptions and estimates about the effect ofdiguents that are inherently uncertain and arefber based on our judgment. Please refer to Rete
“Summary of significant accounting policies” in thecompanying Consolidated Financial Statementa famplete listing of our accounting policies.

Revenue Recognition — Our typical contracts include the sale of prigtewhich are sometimes accompanied by separptalgd extended warrar
contracts. We also sell replacement parts, conblasaand other repair services (sometimes purdoantlti-year product maintenance contracts), w
are not included in the original printer sale anel @rdered by the customer as needed. We recogair@ue pursuant to the guidance within Accoul
Standards Codification (“ASC”") 605, “Revenue Redtign” (ASC 605). Specifically, revenue is recognized wierdence of an arrangement ex
delivery (based on shipping terms which are geheFRDB shipping point) has occurred, the selling@ris fixed and determinable, and collectabild
reasonably assured. We recognize revenue frorealleeof printers to our distributors and reseltarsa sellin basis and on substantially the same terr
we recognize revenue from all our other custom¥ve. provide for an estimate of product returns price protection based on historical experiendte
time of revenue recognition.

We account for all revenue arrangements involvingtiple deliverables in accordance with ASC 605-28ultiple-Element Arrangements.’For thes

arrangements, we consider whether the deliverablea arrangement are within the scope of exigtiigperievel GAAP and apply such literature to
extent that it provides guidance regarding whetbeseparate multiple-deliverable arrangements amdtb allocate value
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among those separate units of accounting. Wedatamine whether revenue arrangements consisbod than one unit of accounting at inception o
arrangement and recognize revenue as each iteme artangement is delivered. We allocate arrangeowesideration to the separate units of accou
based on the relative fair value for all units of@unting in the arrangement, except where amallttsable to the delivered units is limited to thtict
is contingent upon the delivery of additional delizbles or meeting other specified performance itiond.

Revenue related to extended warranty and produicttemance contracts is recognized pursuant to AGE2-25, Separately Priced Extended Warr:
and Product Maintenance Contract®Ursuant to this provision, revenue related to se¢ply priced product maintenance contracts is rdedean:
recognized over the term of the maintenance peribd.record deferred revenue for advance paymentived from customers for maintenance contr

Our customers have the right to return productsdbanot function properly within a limited timetef delivery. We monitor and track product retuans
record a provision for the estimated future retusased on historical experience. Returns haverfislly been within expectations and the provis
established, but we cannot guarantee that we wiilticue to experience return rates consistent hitorical patterns.

We offer some of our customers price protectiommsncentive to carry inventory of our product.e§h price protection plans provide that if we Ic
prices, we will credit them for the price decreasenventory they hold. Our customers typicallyrgdimited amounts of inventory, and we infrequg
lower prices on current products. As a result,aimounts paid under these plans have not beenialatelowever, we cannot guarantee that this mit
level will continue.

We charge our customers for shipping and handingices. The amounts billed to customers are dswbas revenue when the product ships. Any costs
incurred related to these services are included & of sales.

Accounts Receivable — We have standardized credit granting and reviewciesl and procedures for all customer accounts,dieg: credit reviews of &
new customer accounts; ongoing credit evaluatidnsuorent customers; credit limits and payment winased on available credit information;
adjustments to credit limits based upon paymertbhisand the customes’current creditworthiness. We also provide ammede of doubtful accour
based on historical experience and specific custamwiéection issues. Our allowance for doubtfut@ents as of December 31, 2010 was $57,000, c
than 1.0% of outstanding accounts receivable, whielfeel is appropriate considering the overallliggiaf our accounts receivable. While credit les
have historically been within expectations andrimerves established, we cannot guarantee thatredit loss experience will continue to be consit
with historical experience.

Inventory — Our inventories are stated at the lower of cosin@ipally standard cost, which approximates act@dt on a first-in, firsbut basis) ¢
market. We review market value based on histotisalge and estimates of future demand. Assumpdianseviewed at least quarterly and adjustn
are made, as necessary, to reflect changing madalitions. Based on these reviews, inventoryeat@iwns are recorded, as necessary, to n
estimated obsolescence, excess quantities and meakes. Should circumstances change and we deterthat additional inventory is subject
obsolescence, additional write-downs of inventayld result in a charge to income.

Goodwill — We test the impairment of goodwill each year or enfvpequently if events or changes in circumstaregigate that the carrying value may
be recoverable. We completed our last assessmseot Recember 31, 2010. Factors considered thattrigger an impairment review are: signific
underperformance relative to expected historicgbrojected future operating results; significanamgies in the manner of use of acquired assetse
strategy for the overall business; significant niegaindustry or economic trends; and significaetithe in market capitalization relative to net k
value. Goodwill amounted to $1,469,000 at Decen3de2010 and we have determined that no goodwpkirment has occurred.

Income Taxes — In preparing our consolidated financial statements,are required to estimate income taxes in e&dheojurisdictions in which w
operate. This involves estimating the actual curtax exposure together with assessing temporiffierehces between the tax basis of certain ass&
liabilities and their reported amounts in the fio@h statements, as well as net operating lossascredits and other carryforwards. These diffeee
result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, \Wwhice included within our consolidated balance ghe®e then assess the likelihood that the defetas
assets will be realized from future taxable incoarg] to the extent that we believe that realizagamot likely, we establish a valuation allowance.

Significant judgment is required in determining grevision for income taxes and, in particular, aajuation allowance or tax reserves with respeciut
deferred tax assets and uncertain tax positionsa Quarterly basis, we evaluate the recoveralolityur deferred tax assets based upon historésailt:
and forecasted taxable income over future yeard, raatch this forecast against the basis differgndeductions available in future years and
limitations allowed for net operating loss and ta&dit carryforwards to ensure that there is adegsapport for the realization of the deferred daget:
While we have considered future taxable incomeargbing prudent and feasible tax planning strategieissessing the need for a valuation allowar
tax reserve, in the event we were to determinewleatvould not be able to realize all or part of deferred tax assets in the future, an adjustnoetite
valuation allowance or tax reserves would be chldhegea reduction to
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income in the period such determination was madkewise, should we determine that we would be ableealize future deferred tax assets in exce
its net recorded amount, an adjustment to the tialuallowance or tax reserves would increasemaime in the period such determination was made.

We account for income taxes in accordance with ARI0, “Income Taxes."Among other things this provision prescribes a mimin recognitio
threshold that an income tax position must meettegeit is recorded in the reporting entgyfinancial statements. It also requires that fifects of suc
income tax positions be recognized only if, ash& balance sheet reporting date, it is “more likbn not” {.e., more than a 50% likelihood) that
income tax position will be sustained based sotelyits technical merits. When making this assessmmeanagement must assume that the respo
taxing authority will examine the income tax pasitiand have full knowledge of all relevant factsl ather pertinent information. The accoun
guidance also clarifies the method of accruingifiterest and penalties when there is a differerstedsen the amount claimed, or expected to be cth
on a company’s income tax returns and the benefitsgnized in the financial statements.

Warranty — We generally warrant our products for up to 24 rhenand record the estimated cost of such productamées at the time the sale
recorded. Estimated warranty costs are based agtoal past experience of product repairs andelated estimated cost of labor and material to ntlaé
necessary repairs. If actual future product repaiies or the actual costs of material and labfferdirom the estimates, adjustments to the acc
warranty liability and related warranty expense lddae made.

Contingencies — We record an estimated liability related to conéinges based on our estimates of the probable me@ursuant to ASC 4!
“Contingencies.”On a quarterly basis, we assess the potentialitiabélated to pending litigation, audits and atleentingencies and confirm or rev
estimates and reserves as appropriate. If theld@bilities are settled in an amount greatenttizose recorded on the balance sheet, a chaigedme
would be recorded.

Share-Based Compensation —We calculate share-based compensation expenseandatice with ASC 718, “Compensation — Stock Coraggon” using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to calcultite fair value of sharbased awards. The key assumptions for this valuatiethod include tl
expected term of an option grant, stock price vidlatrisk-free interest rate, dividend yield, and forfeituagée. The determination of these assumptic
based on past history and future expectationsjsagsdbject to a high level of judgment. To theesxtany of the assumptions were to change fromtp
year, the fair value of new option grants may \&gpnificantly.

Results of Operations: Year ended December 31, 20&¢0mpared to year ended December 31, 2009

Net Sales. Net sales, which include printer sales and safl@splacement parts, consumables and maintenarttespair services, by market for the y
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

Year endec Year ende( Change

(In thousands) December 31, 201 December 31, 200 $ %
Banking and PO! $ 14,52¢ 23.(% $ 16,69¢ 28.6% $ (2,167) (13.0%
Casino and gamin 25,67¢ 40.6% 17,52¢ 30.(% 8,152 46.5%
Lottery 8,14 12.% 9,551 16.4% (1,409 (14.9%
TSG 14,84¢ 23.5% 14,57« 25.(% 272 1.9%

$ 63,19 100.% $ 58,34¢ 100.(% $ 4,84¢ 8.3%
International* $ 19,09: 30.2% $ 12,45¢ 21.5% $ 6,637 53.%%

International sales do not include sales of printeade to domestic distributors or other customvis in turn
i ship those printers to international destinatic

Net sales for 2010 increased $4,848,000, or 8%n f2009 due to sales increases in two out of founwfmarkets: casino and gaming (an increa
approximately $8,152,000, or 47%) and TSG (an mseeof approximately $272,000, or 2%). Sales flianking and POS decreased approxim
$2,167,000, or 13%, and sales from our lottery madecreased approximately $1,409,000, or 15%ntéRrsales volume increased 17% while the avi
selling price of our printers decreased approxitgai&o (due primarily to a decrease in sales of lraplprinters with higher average selling pricegni
2009 to 2010. Overall, international sales inceee®6,637,000, or 53%, driven by higher saleseogtiming portion of the casino and gaming market.

Banking and PO¢ Revenue from the banking and POS market inclsaéss of printers used by banks, credit unionsahdr financial institutions

print and/or validate receipts at bank teller stadi Revenue from this market also includes safléskjet, thermal and impact printers used prityaloy
retailers in restaurant (including fine dining, eakdining and fast food), hospitality, and spegiattail industries to

15




Table of Content

print receipts for consumers, validate checks, rimtpon linerless labels or other inserted medales of our banking and POS printers world
decreased approximately $2,167,000, or 13%, fro8920

Year endec Year ende( Change
(In thousands) December 31, 201 December 31, 200 $ %
Domestic $ 13,447 92.6% $ 15,48( 92.1% $ (2,039 (13.1%
International 1,081 7.4% 1,21¢ 7.2% (134) (11.0%
$ 14,52¢ 100.(% $ 16,69¢ 100.(% $ (2,167) (13.0%

Domestic banking and POS printer revenue was $I3890, a 13% decrease from 2009, primarily drivefolver sales of our banking printersSales c
our banking printers decreased 79% in 2010 comperetD09 due to the completion of a project by ofi@ur large banking customers utilizing
BANKjet® 1500 bank teller printers in 2009 that did not reru2010. This decrease was somewhat offset byfitst year of volume sales of «
BANKjet® 2500 printer. Although we are currentlyrguing several banking opportunities, due to tleegt-oriented nature of these sales, we ca
predict the level of future sales. Domestic salbsur POS printers increased approximately 52%elgr due to sales of our two printer products
McDonalds for its combined beverage initiative arsdPOS system upgrade and grill initiatives. Saléthese printers increased approximately 1
during 2010 compared to 2009We expect to continue to benefit from our relatldpswith McDonalds during 2011 as McDonalds congisian:
completes the rollout of its new POS system, wlingtudes the grill initiative printer upgrades,wre than 14,000 U.S. stores and begins to expga
rollout to more than 18,000 international stores.

International banking and POS printer sales for®2@dcreased from 2009 by $134,000, or 11%, to $100® due primarily to lower legacy impact prii
sales to our international distributor in Latin Arica.

Casinoandgaming: Revenue from the casino and gaming market irdughles of printers used in slot machines, vid#ery terminals (“VLTs"),anc
other gaming machines that print tickets or receipstead of issuing coins (“ticket-in, ticket-owdf “TITO”) at casinos and racetracks (“racinosi)c
other gaming venues worldwide. Revenue from thésket also includes sales of printers used in ttermational offeremise gaming market in gam
machines such as Amusement with Prizes (“AWP”),lISkiith Prizes (“SWP"), Fixed Odds Betting Termima“FOBT") at noneasino gamin
establishments and royalties related to our padecdsino and gaming technology. Sales of our camimd gaming printers increased $8,152,000, or
from 2009.

Year endec Year ende( Change
(In thousands) December 31, 201 December 31, 200 $ %
Domestic $ 9,287 36.2% $ 7,497 42.8% $ 1,79(C 23.9%
International 16,39 63.6% 10,02¢ 57.2% 6,362 63.4%
$ 25,67¢ 100.(% $ 17,52¢ 100.(% $ 8,152 46.5%

Domestic sales of our casino and gaming printeseesed $1,790,000, or 24%, due largely to an aseref 53% in the volume of sales of our the
casino printers. We believe that our increaseéhoagrinter sales during 2010 resulted from masdtedre gains, as we believe the overall replace
cycle of slot machines was lower in 2010 as congp&we2009. Even though we anticipate little imprment in the domestic slot machine replace
cycle in 2011, we expect our domestic casino daldé® higher in 2011 than in 2010 as we expecbtticue to gain market share. However, we be
the current uncertain economic environment coulttinae to negatively impact the casino industrgvel of capital expenditures in 2011, and assallt
our future sales to the domestic casino and gamiagket could be unpredictable and adversely affecte

International casino and gaming printer sales msed $6,362,000, or 63%, to $16,391,000 in 2010s ificrease was due primarily to a 161% increa
our thermal casino printer sales to our OEM antritistor customers in Canada and Europe, parti@fiset by a 23% decrease in casino printer sa
our distributor in Australia. The increase in sale our customers in Canada and Europe was pljndue to the sales of gaming machines into |
where in 2010 the Italian government approved gamglbperators to install approximately 50,000 VLAnges over the course of several years. Si
substantial portion of these games were instaliethd 2010, we expect installations for 2011 toskgmificantly lower than in 2010. In addition, eslfo
2010 included $1,600,000 in sales of our off-prengiaming printers to a new customer for use in ggmiachines in the U.K.

Lottery: Revenue from the lottery market includes saldsttéry printers to GTECH for various lottery ajgpltions.

Year endec Year ende( Change
(In thousands) December 31, 201 December 31, 200 $ %
Domestic $ 7,81 96.(% $ 9,117 95.5% $ (1,309 (14.9%
International 32¢ 4.0% 434 4.5% (105) (24.2)%
$ 8,14 100.(% $ 9,551 100.(% $ (1,409 (14.9%
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Domestic and international lottery printer salesGfBECH, which include thermal dime and other lottery printers, decreased appraiehy $1,409,00!
or 15%, in 2010 compared to 2009, with domestiesalecreasing approximately $1,304,000 and interredt sales decreasing approxima
$105,000. Our sales to GTECH are directly dependerthe timing and number of new and upgrade@iyptterminal installations GTECH performs,
as a result, may fluctuate significantly quartegt@rter and year-to-year. Our sales to GTECH rmeindicative of GTECH overall business
revenue. Based on our backlog of orders, we expéaitsales to GTECH for 2011 to be significaritigher than those reported during 2010, particy
during the first half of 2011.

TSG: Revenue from TSG includes sales of consumalddyats (inkjet cartridges, ribbons, receipt papet ather printing supplies), replacement p
maintenance and repair services, testing serviedsrbished printers, and shipping and handlingrges. Sales from TSG increased approxim
$272,000, or 2%, from 2009.

Year endec Year endec Change
(In thousands) December 31, 201 December 31, 200 $ %
Domestic $ 13,55¢ 91.2% $ 13,79¢ 94.7% $ (242) (1.8%)
International 1,292 8.7% 77¢€ 5.2% 514 66.1%
$ 14,84¢ 100.% $ 14,57+ 100.(% $ 272 1.9%

Domestic revenue from TSG decreased approximat@h2 $00, or 2%, largely due to a decrease of 23%alas of replacement parts compared ti
same period in 2009. The decrease in replacenaghsales was primarily due to lower demand fotaterlegacy printers, as the installed base ofe
legacy printers in the market continues to declilmeaddition, maintenance and repair service ragateclined 18% due primarily to lower service caci
revenue. These decreases were somewhat offset liyceease in revenue from our new paper testimgices and a 2% increase in sales of ir
cartridges largely due to newly acquired custom&¥e expect TSG sales in 2011 to be consistent 200.

Internationally, TSG revenue increased $514,00@686, to $1,292,000, due primarily to higher saleseplacement parts and printer accessories, lie
for our casino, gaming and lottery printers ing@dlin Europe.

Gross Profit.  Gross profit information is summarized belowtfiousands, except percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales — Total Sales —
2010 2009 Change 2010 2009
Year endec $ 22,54¢ % 18,82¢ 19.8% 35.7% 32.%%

Gross profit is measured as revenue less costarfgysold. Cost of goods sold includes primarily tost of all raw materials and component partgci
labor and the associated manufacturing overheadnmgs, and the cost of finished products purchésedtly from our contract manufacturer. Gi
profit increased $3,719,000, or 20%, to $22,548060M $18,829,000 and gross margin improved fron3%2to 35.7% due primarily to (1) an increas
sales of contract manufactured products with loaegrall product costs, including lower labor cosesulting from the move of production for
majority of our products to a low cost contract mfacturer in China, (2) a more favorable sales asixve sold more higher margin casino printers
fewer lower margin banking printers in 2010 compa@2009 and (3) increased volume of 17% offsed lofecrease of 5% in average selling prices ¢
printers in 2010 compared to 2009. Additionallyy gross margin for 2009 was adversely impactethigiier material and labor costs as we deple
substantial portion of our higher cost domestieimery in preparation for the completion of ourguwotion transfer to China. We expect our grossgin
for 2011 to be approximately the same as in 2010.

Engineering, Design and Product Development. Engineering, design and product development imétion is summarized below (in thousands, e»
percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales — Total Sales —
2010 2009 Change 2010 2009
Year endec $ 3,000 $ 2,78¢ 7.€% 4.7% 4.8%

Engineering, design and product development expepsmarily include salary and payroll related exges for our engineering staff, depreciation
design expenses (including prototype printer expgneutside design and testing services, and sf)plBuch expenses increased $212,000, or ¢
$3,000,000. The increase was due primarily to éiighmployee compensation related expenses resldiiggly from annual salary increases and hi
incentive compensation of $165,000, higher outselting and preroduction expenses related to new product devedoprof $20,000, and higt
consulting expenses of $21,000 compared to 2009.
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Selling and Marketing. Selling and marketing information is summarizetbl (in thousands, except percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales — Total Sales —
2010 2009 Change 2010 2009
Year endec $ 6,407 $ 5,821 10.1% 10.1% 10.(%

Selling and marketing expenses primarily includtarsas and payroll related expenses for our sates raarketing staff, sales commissions, tr
expenses, expenses associated with the lease e$ sffices, advertising, trade show expensespremerce and other promotional marke
expenses. Selling and marketing expenses for Rzt6ased $586,000, or 10%, to $6,407,000. Thease was due primarily to approximately $182
of higher employee compensation related expensgsciased with increased headcount within the sdkgsartments and higher sales commis:
resulting from higher sales volume, $275,000 ofréased travel related expenses, $99,000 of inatetmiadeshow expenses, and $46,000 of h
demonstration printer expenses. These increasessseewhat offset by $13,000 decrease in othen@tional marketing expenses compared to the
year period.

General and Administrative. General and administrative information is summedibelow (in thousands, except percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales — Total Sales —
2010 2009 Change 2010 2009
Year endec $ 7,280 $ 6,927 5.1% 11.5% 11.%%

General and administrative expenses primarily ihelsalaries and payroll related expenses for oacwdive, accounting, human resource, bus
development and information technology staff, exgesnfor our corporate headquarters, professiomhlegyal expenses, telecommunication expense:
other expenses related to being a publichgled company. General and administrative expgeimeeeased $356,000, or 5%, to $7,280,000. Toe#s
was due primarily to $430,000 in increased employ@apensation related expenses from annual salargdases and higher incentive compensatic
well as an increase of $115,000 in certain statelaral taxes. These increases were largely offfiget reduction in legal and professional fee ezpsero
$150,000 and a reduction of depreciation expen$55{000.

Operating Income. Operating income information is summarized be{owthousands, except percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales - Total Sales —
2010 2009 Change 2010 2009
Year endec $ 5,861 $ 3,29¢ 77.€% 9.3% 5.€%

During 2010, we reported operating income of $5,86Q, or 9.3%, of net sales, compared to operatingme of $3,296,000, or 5.6% of net sale
2009. The increase in our operating income andabipg margin was primarily due to higher grossfipresulting from the 8% increase in net sales &
340 basis point improvement in gross margin in 26d@pared to 2009.

Interest. We recorded net interest expense of $9,000 irD 2@impared to $50,000 in 2009. The decrease inntextest expense is due to incre:
interest income earned on a higher average cashdmin 2010 compared to 2009, partially offse$B§,000 of interest expense incurred in 2010 rd
to certain prior yearsstate and local tax liabilities. Interest expersated to the unused revolving credit line fee ambrtization of deferred financi
costs on our revolving credit facility with TD Bamemained consistent in 2010 and 2009. See “Lituidnd Capital Resourcedielow for mor
information.

Other Income. We recorded other expense of $25,000 in 2010 eoeapto other expense of $33,000 in 2009. Otheerse for 2010 and 2009 prima
included foreign currency transaction exchangedssscorded by our U.K. subsidiary. These losse welatively consistent in 2010 compared to 2009.

Income Taxes. We recorded an income tax provision for 2010 hP23,000 at an effective tax rate of 33.0% conghane$1,073,000 at an effective
rate of 33.5%. The effective tax rate for 2010rdased slightly as compared to 2009 primarily duied¢reased utilization of state net operatingdgsan:
certain credits. We expect our annual effectixergae for 2011 to be approximately 34-35%.

Net Income . We reported net income during 2010 of $3,904,@0050.41, per diluted share, compared to $2,140,60 $0.23, per diluted share,
20009.
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Results of Operations: Year ended December 31, 2008mpared to year ended December 31, 2008

Net Sales. Net sales, which include printer sales and safl@splacement parts, consumables and maintenarttespair services, by market for the y
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 were as follows:

Year endec Year ende( Change

(In thousands) December 31, 200 December 31, 200 $ %
Banking and PO:! $ 16,69¢ 28.6% $ 11,86¢ 19.1% $ 4,82¢ 40.7%
Casino and gamin 17,52¢ 30.(% 22,29¢ 35.8% (4,777) (21.9%
Lottery 9,551 16.4% 15,731 25.52% (6,180) (39.9%
TSG 14,57« 25.(% 12,311 19.8% 2,26: 18.4%

$ 58,34¢ 100.(% $ 62,207 100.(% $ (3,867) (6.2%
International* $ 12,45¢ 21.52% $ 10,12¢ 16.2% $ 2,33( 23.(%

International sales do not include sales of prsxteade to domestic distributors or other custom# in turn
i ship those printers to international destinatic

Net sales for 2009 decreased $3,861,000, or 6% #0908 due to sales decreases in two out of fowuofmarkets: casino and gaming (a decrea
approximately $4,773,000, or 21%) and lottery (ardase of approximately $6,180,000 or 39%). Sktea banking and POS increased approximi
$4,829,000 or 41% and sales from our TSG increapgdoximately $2,263,000, or 18%. Printer saldsme decreased 17% while the average s¢
price of our printers increased by approximately @W4e primarily to an increase in sales of bankirigters with higher average selling prices) frof®¢&
to 2009. Overall, international sales increase@32,000, or 23%, driven by higher sales to theiggmortion of the casino and gaming market.

Banking and PO:: Sales of our banking and POS printers worldvindeeased approximately $4,829,000, or 41%, fro®820

Year endec Year ende( Change
(In thousands) December 31, 20C December 31, 200 $ %
Domestic $ 15,48( 92.7% $ 10,66 89.9% $ 4,81¢ 45.2%
International 1,21t 7.3% 1,20z 10.1% 13 1.1%
$ 16,69¢ 100.(% $ 11,86¢ 100.(% $ 4,82¢ 40.7%

Domestic banking and POS printer revenue incre&séd 5,480,000, representing a $4,816,000, or 468tease from 2008 primarily driven by hig
sales of our banking printersSales of our banking printers increased 443% ir028@mpared to 2008 as we finished shipping agdivesi$4,900,0C
order we received from a large banking customéebruary 2009 as well as additional orders frora shime customer. Sales of our POS printers de
approximately 15% largely due to the general ecdo@iowdown that we believe adversely impacteddhgital spending of a number of our retail
hospitality customers during 2009. Contributingthe decline in sales of our POS printers, salesuwflegacy line of POS impact printers decre
approximately 39%. Despite these declines, sdlesiotwo new printer products for McDonalds, thieaca 80007 (for McDonald’s new POS syste
upgrade including the grill initiative) and Ithaca@40 (for McDonalds combined beverage initiative), increased appratéty 48% during 20(
compared to 2008. During 2009, we benefited fromrdasing sales of printers for both of these McDaisainitiatives, but most especially from
rollout of printers for the combined beverage datitie that was nearing completion.

International banking and POS printer shipment2&9 were consistent with 2008, increasing $13,000%, to $1,215,000.

Casinoandgaming: Sales of our casino and gaming printers decce&4¢773,000, or 21%, from 2008, due primarily &rrtased sales of our ther
casino and gaming printers domestically offsetrigréased sales of our thermal gaming printersriatemally.

Year endec Year endec Change
(In thousands) December 31, 200 December 31, 200 $ %
Domestic $ 7,497 42.¢% $ 14,35¢ 64.% $ (6,85¢) (47.9%
International 10,02¢ 57.2% 7,944 35.6% 2,08t 26.2%
$ 17,52¢ 100.(% $ 22,29¢ 100.(% $ (4,777) (21.9%

Domestic sales of our casino and gaming printecsedesed $6,858,000, or 48%, due largely to a dsergasales of our thermal casino printers, ana
lesser extent sales of our gaming printers, bothlo€h were impacted by the downturn in the doneestisino and gaming market.
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International casino and gaming printer sales msed $2,085,000, or 26%, to $10,029,000 in 20@8erdational gaming printer sales increased 898
largely by continued growing sales of our line ¢f premise gaming printers in both Europe and Australnternational casino printer sales for z
increased 3% due primarily to an 83% increase less our Australian distributer that was largeffset by a 39% decline in sales to our Euroj
distributor.

Lottery: Revenue from the lottery market includes saldsttéry printers to GTECH for various lottery ajgpltions.

Year endec Year endec Change
(In thousands) December 31, 200 December 31, 200 $ %
Domestic $ 9,115 95.5% $ 15,28: 97.2% $ (6,16€) (40.9%
International 434 4.5% 44€ 2.8% (14) (3.2)%
$ 9,551 100.% $ 15,731 100.(% $ (6,180) (39.9%

Domestic and international lottery printer salesGfBECH, which include thermal dime and other lottery printers, decreased appraiefy $6,180,00!
or 39%, in 2009 compared to 2008, with domestiesalecreasing approximately $6,166,000 and intemedt sales decreasing approxima
$14,000. Our sales to GTECH are directly dependarthe timing and number of new and upgradedrptiErminal installations GTECH performs,
as a result, may fluctuate significantly quarteqtarter and year-to-year. Our sales to GTECHaténdicative of GTECHs overall business or reven

TSG: Sales from TSG increased approximately $2,268,0018% from 2008.

Year endec Year ende( Change
(In thousands) December 31, 200 December 31, 200 $ %
Domestic $ 13,79¢ 94.1% $ 11,77¢ 95.7% $ 2,017 17.1%
International 77€ 5.2% 532 4.3% 24¢€ 46.2%
$ 14,57 100.(% $ 12,31: 100.(% $ 2,26° 18.2%

Domestic revenue from TSG increased approximat@lPp1¥,000, or 17%, largely due to an increase g@r@pmately 33% in sales of consumg
products from 2008, mostly due to significantly lég inkjet cartridge sales to a large banking austo During 2009, this large customer purch
approximately two years worth of inkjet cartridgesed on their annual average consumption rate.

Internationally, TSG revenue increased $246,00@686, to $778,000, due primarily to a 51% increasgales of replacement parts and accessories
47% increase in maintenance and repair servicesitevlargely due to new service contracts won du2iD9.

Gross Profit. Gross profit information is summarized belowtfiousands, except percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales — Total Sales —
2009 2008 Change 2009 2008
Year endec $ 18,82¢ $ 20,95( (10.1% 32.2% 33.%

Gross profit decreased $2,121,000, or 10%, to B8RO0 from $20,950,000, and gross margin declfrad 33.7% to 32.3% due primarily to (1) a
decrease in sales in 2009 compared to 2008, @safhvorable sales mix resulting from higher safdsanking printers and certain consumable pra
at lower gross margins than our overall gross nmaagid (3) higher material and labor cost as wealegdla substantial portion of our higher cost ddit
inventory in the second half of 2009 as we compléke transition of full production of 70% of ouriters to a contract manufacturer in China. T
decreases were partially offset by (1) approxinya$@47,000 of lower product warranty expense framprioved repair history and a 17% decline in pr
shipments in 2009 compared to 2008 and (2) apprabeiy $387,000 of lower manufacturing expensestduée transition of more of our productior
China.

Engineering, Design and Product Development. Engineering, design and product development in&tion is summarized below (in thousands, e»
percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales — Total Sales —
2009 2008 Change 2009 2008
Year endec $ 2,78¢ $ 2,94 (5.2% 4.8% 4.7%
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Engineering, design and product development expedsereased $154,000, or 5%, to $2,788,000. Appedgly $60,000 of the decrease was dt
lower outside testing and ppmeduction prototype expenses related to new prodereelopment and approximately $97,000 of the eks® was due
lower employee compensation related expenses,dimguower incentive compensation.

Selling and Marketing. Selling and marketing information is summarizetbl (in thousands, except percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales—  Total Sales —
2009 2008 Change 2009 2008
Year endec $ 5821 $ 6,07¢ (4.2% 10.(% 9.8%

Selling and marketing expenses for 2009 decrea®sd, 800, or 4%, due primarily to approximately $000 of lower sales commissions resulting frc
6% decrease in sales, approximately $33,000 ofrdreeel related expenses, approximately $151,80@duced promotional marketing expenses,
reduction of approximately $54,000 in consultingl gmofessional fees due to the cost control initést that were put in place for 2009. These deser
were partially offset by an increase of approxira$67,000 in employee compensation related expeaseve replaced several existing sales empl
with higher level sales employees at higher comaigors levels during 2009 to upgrade certain kegsabsitions.

General and Administrative. General and administrative information is summedibelow (in thousands, except percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales — Total Sales —
2009 2008 Change 2009 2008
Year endec $ 6,92¢ $ 7,04( (1.6% 11.€% 11.5%

General and administrative expenses decreasedRIL&r 2%, due primarily to a reduction of approately $515,000 in employee compensation re
expenses largely due to lower incentive compens&tio2009 compared to 2008. These decreases wegely offset by approximately $68,00C
increased legal expenses, increased employee ceatpEmrelated expenses associated with the fall gffect of the hiring of our new Vice Presidef
Business Development in May 2008, and $67,000dreesed depreciation. In addition, general andirdirative expenses for 2009 included sever
charges of approximately $211,000 related to thmitetion of approximately 17 employees.

Legal fees associated with lawsuit. During 2009, we did not incur any legal fees teadato the settled lawsuit with FutureLogic complate $3,029,000
2008. We settled our litigation with FutureLogitMay 2008 and as a result of the settlement, wead@xpect to incur any additional legal feestealac
the lawsuit.

Operating Income. Operating income information is summarized be{owthousands, except percentages):

December 31 Percent Percent of Percent of
Total Sales - Total Sales —
2009 2008 Change 2009 2008
Year endec $ 3,29¢ $ 1,861 77.1% 5.6% 3.(%

During 2009, we reported operating income of $3,208, or 5.6% of net sales, compared to operatisgme of $1,861,000, or 3.0% of net sale
2008. The increase in our operating income andatipg margin was due to lower operating expensesu@ing the absence of legal expense relat
the FutureLogic lawsuit), partially offset by lowgross profit on a 6% decline in sales in 2009 careg to 2008.

Interest. We recorded net interest expense of $50,000 @9 Z@mpared to $11,000 in 2008. Although our dzelance increased from $2,000,00
December 31, 2008 to $10,017,000 at December 3B, 20hd we maintained a higher average cash baiar&@09 than in 2008, we earned lower inte
income in 2009 due to a lower overall rate of meton our invested cash balance due to the deageaderest rate environment. Interest expenseet
to the unused revolving credit line fee and amatiin of deferred financing costs on our revolvargdit facility with TD Bank remained consisten
2009 and 2008. See “Liquidity and Capital Resasitbelow for more information.

Other Income. We recorded other expense of $33,000 in 2009 eoaapto other income of $368,000 in 2008. Theekex® was primarily due to fore

currency transaction exchange losses recorded by U subsidiary resulting from a 10% weakeningtef U.S. dollar against the British pound du
2009, as compared to a foreign currency transaetiehange gain resulting from a 28% strengthenfrigeoU.S. dollar against the British pound in 2008
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Income Taxes. We recorded an income tax provision for 2009 Hb0$3,000 at an effective tax rate of 33.5% compaone$774,000 at an effective
rate of 34.9%. The effective tax rate for 2009rdased as compared to 2008 primarily due to inexkaslization of state net operating losses amthin
credits.

Net Income. We reported net income during 2009 of $2,140,00@0.23 per diluted share, compared to $1,444,6080.15 per diluted share, for 20

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We assess our liquidity in terms of our abilitygenerate cash to fund our operating, investingfarahcing activities. Significant factors affedirhe
management of liquidity are cash flows from opemitactivities, capital expenditures, stock repuselsa access to bank lines of credit and our alid
attract long-term capital with satisfactory terms.

Internal cash generation together with currentlgilable cash and investments, available borrowauijifies and an ability to access credit lines)gedec
are expected to be sufficient to fund operatioagjtal expenditures, and any increase in workingjtahthat would be required to accommodate a
level of business activity. We actively seek tpaxd by acquisition as well as through the growtbus current business. While a significant acijiois
may require additional debt and/or equity finangialjhough no assurances can be given, we beli@teante would be able to obtain additional finan
based on our historical earnings performance.

During 2010, our cash flows primarily reflected g sales volume, resulting in higher accounts ivabée balances and increased inver
investment. Our cash balance increased $1,268@003%, from December 31, 2009 and we ended 20f0 approximately $11,285,000 in cash
cash equivalents and no debt outstanding.

Operating activities: The following significant factors primarily affeed our cash provided by operations of $2,132,80@2010 as compared
$8,373,000 in 2009.

During 2010:

« We reported net income of $3,904,000.

« We recorded depreciation, amortization and non-cashpensation expense of $2,114,000.

« We recorded non-cash deferred income tax expen$g4df,000.

« Accounts receivable increased $1,878,000 due teehigales volume and the timing of sales during/des.

« Inventories increased $6,851,000 as we increasetisg levels of our lower cost, fullpuilt printers from our contract manufacturer ini@hir
the first half of 2010. During the second hal26fL0, inventory purchases were at a significantér level than the first half due to backlog
orders that will be shipped in 2011. We expectiouentories to decline starting in the second tprasf 2011 as we ship our backlog of or
and reduce our inventory purchas

« Accounts payable increased $3,289,000 due to higiventory purchases in the fourth quarter of 2@i@nticipation of significantly high
demand in the first half of 2011, and to a less¢em, the timing of payments in the fourth quade010.

« Accrued liabilities and other liabilities increas®625,000 due primarily to higher incentive commizs and fringe benefit related accrual
well as increased income taxes payable resultom f higher level of taxable incon

During 2009:

« We reported net income of $2,140,000.

« We recorded depreciation, amortization and non-cashpensation expense of $2,397,000.

« We recorded non-cash deferred income tax expen$#,002,000.

« Accounts receivable increased $263,000 due tartiag of sales.

« Inventories decreased $3,968,000 as we depletetistasitial portion of our domestic inventory priorthe final transition of full production
70% of our printers to a contract manufacturer n@ that was completed by the end of 2(

« Accounts payable increased $187,000 due to thadimi payments in the fourth quarter of 2009.

« Accrued liabilities and other liabilities decreas®®42,000 due primarily to lower payroll, fringeradit and incentive compensation rele
accruals

Investing activities: Our capital expenditures were approximately $1,000 and $643,000 in 2010 and 2009, respectivEkpenditures in 20:
included approximately $643,000 for the purchasee product tooling, $269,000 for the purchasearfiputer, networking equipment, and softw
$130,000 for capitalized development costs formew EPICENTRAL™ promotional printing system for tbasino market, $29,000 for the purchas
engineering equipment, and the remaining amoumbaily for the purchase of manufacturing equipméeasehold improvements and furniture
fixtures. Expenditures in 2009 included approxiehat$295,000 for the purchase of new product taplii236,000 for the purchase of compt
networking equipment, and software, $72,000 for pnechase of manufacturing equipment, and the mimgiamount primarily for the purchase
engineering equipment and leasehold improvemeMs.expect our capital
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expenditures for 2011 to be between $1,500,000,%2@00,000, largely for new product tooling anahtowued development of our EPICENTRAL
software product.

Financing activities: We generated approximately $237,000 of cash fiioancing activities during 2010 due to $414,00Qpofceeds and tax bene
from stock option exercises offset by $177,000 ofchases of common stock for treasury. During 20@8 generated approximately $290,000 1
financing activities due to proceeds and tax bésnéfdm stock option exercises.

Working Capital

Our working capital increased to $25,525,000 atdbawer 31, 2010 from $20,474,000 at December 319.2@r current ratio decreased to 3.
December 31, 2010, compared to 3.7 at DecembeR@19. The increase in our working capital was largely daéhigher cash balances, acco
receivable balances and inventory balances offgétigher accounts payable and accrued liabilitiglstices all resulting from higher sales and invg
purchases. The current ratio decreased due tehagtounts payable and accrued liabilities baknesulting from higher inventory purchases.

Resource Sufficiency
We believe that our cash on hand and cash flowsrgéd from operations will provide sufficient rastes to meet our working capital needs, finana
capital expenditures and meet our liquidity requieats through at least the next twelve months.

Credit Facility and Borrowings

On November 28, 2006, we signed a, five-year $ZD@I credit facility (the “TD Bank Credit Facilifywith TD Bank. The TD Bank Credit Facility
provides for a $20,000,000 revolving credit lingiexag on November 28, 2011. Borrowings under tinoiving credit line bear a floating rate of ints
at the prime rate minus one percent and are sedwyredlien on all of our assets. We also pay aofe@.25% on unused borrowings under the revo
credit line. The total deferred financing costltiag to expenses incurred to complete the TD Ba@nddit Facility was $94,000. The TD Bank Cr
Facility imposes certain quarterly financial covetsaon usand restricts, among other things, our abilityrtouir additional indebtedness, the payme
dividends on our common stock and the creatiorttoéroliens. We expect to renew our credit facility with TDBaor another financial institution duri
2011. We were in compliance with all financial eoants of the TD Bank Credit Facility at Decembgy 3010. The following table lists the finan
covenants and the performance measurements at Bec&h, 2010:

Financial Covenar Requirement/Restrictio Calculation at December 31, 20
Operating cash flow / Total debt serv Minimum of 1.25 times 74.7 times
Funded debt / EBITD/ Maximum of 3.2E 0 times

As of December 31, 2010, we had no balances oulisigiron the revolving credit line. Undrawn commatms under the TD Bank Credit facility w
approximately $20,000,000 at December 31, 2010.

Stock Repurchase Program

On May 27, 2010, our Board of Directors approvedesv stock repurchase program (the “Stock RepurcRasgram”). Under the Stock Repurchs
Program, we are authorized to repurchase up t@8@M0O0 of our outstanding shares of common stamk time to time in the open market over a three-
year period ending May 27, 2013, depending on ntaxteditions, share price and other factors.

During the fourth quarter of 2010, we made no repases of common stock. As of December 31, 20&Mhave repurchased a total of 22,3B@res ¢
common stock for approximately $177,000 , at amaye price of $7.95per share, under the Stock Repurchase Program.

Shareholders’ Equity

Shareholderséquity increased $4,780,000 to $31,134,000 at Dbee?il, 2010 from $26,354,000 at December 31, 200 increase was primarily ¢
to net income of $3,904,000, proceeds of approxipa$393,000 from the issuance of 84,672 sharesoafmon stock from stock option exerci:
compensation expense related to stock options estdated stock of $565,000, an increase in aduifipaidin capital of approximately $21,000 due
tax benefits resulting from employee stock trarisast and approximately $77,000 from the issuanc& 204 shares of deferred stock units. T
increases were offset by $177,000 for the purcb&2@,338 shares of treasury stock.

Contractual Obligations
Our contractual obligations as of December 31, 20éf as follows:
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Payments due by peric

(In thousands) Total <1year 1-3 years 3-5 years > 5 years

Operating lease obligatiol $ 3,11C $ 95z $ 95¢ $ 74C % 46C
Purchase obligations 19,60: 19,37( 231 - -
Total $ 22,71. $ 20,32: $ 1,18¢ $ 74C $ 46C

Purchase obligations are for purchases made indheal course of business to meet operational remgnts, primarily of fully assembled printers
component part inventory.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements. In October 2009, the FASB established the accograimd reporting guidance for arrangements inclt
multiple revenuegenerating activities. This guidance provides aineents to the criteria for separating deliverablegasuring and allocati
arrangement consideration to one or more unitcodanting. The amendments also establish a sedliing hierarchy for determining the selling praf
a deliverable. Significantly enhanced disclosuaes also required to provide information about adeg’s multipledeliverable revenue arrangeme
including information about the nature and termignificant deliverables, and its performance witldrrangements. The amendments also re
providing information about the significant judgntemade and changes to those judgments and abauthgoapplication of the relative sellimgice
method affects the timing or amount of revenue ge@mn. The amendments are effective prospegtifet revenue arrangements entered int
materially modified in the fiscal years beginning or after June 15, 2010. Early application isnpted. Currently these provisions do not hav
impact on our consolidated financial statements weddo not anticipate these provisions will havenaterial impact on our consolidated finan
statements.

Financing Receivables: In July 2010 the FASB issued new accounting guigao improve the disclosures that an entity mlesiabout the credit quality
of its financing receivables and the related allogeafor credit losses. Accounts receivable witmieexceeding one year are considered finance
receivables subject to the provisions of this séadd Our trade receivables, which arose from #éhe af goods or services, have a contractual nigtofi
one year or less and therefore are not subjetietpitovisions of this standard. We do not havesagwificant receivables with a term exceeding ypear
and as a result, the standard does not have aiahatgpact on us.

Impact of Inflation

We believe that our business has not been affdotedsignificant degree by inflationary trends dgrthe past three years. However, inflation i a
factor in the worldwide economy and may increagedbst of purchasing printers from our contract afacturer in China, as well as the cost of ce
raw materials, component parts and labor usedanptioduction of our products. It also may increase operating expenses, manufacturing ovet
expenses and the cost to acquire or replace figgets Despite growing costs of oil, gas and fitedyer the last two years, we have generally lzdse tc
maintain or improve our profit margins through puotivity and efficiency improvements, cost redustigrograms and to a lesser extent, price incre
and we expect to be able to do the same during.28%Isuch, we do not believe that inflation wilive a significant impact on our business duringl201

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures adout Market Risk.

Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interasts relates primarily to the investment of owrilable cash and cash equivalents. In accordasitb
our investment policy, we strive to achieve abowskat rates of return in exchange for acceptingualgnt amount of incremental risk, which includes
risk of interest rate movements. Risk toleranceoisstrained by an overriding objective to presarapital. An effective increase or decrease of 16
interest rates would not have a material effecv@nresults of operations or cash flows.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

A substantial portion of our sales are denominaidd.S. dollars and, as a result, we have relatilitle exposure to foreign currency exchange risth
respect to sales made. This exposure may charegetime as business practices evolve and could hawaterial adverse impact on our financial re
in the future. We do not use forward exchangeraotd to hedge exposures denominated in foreigeiecies or any other derivative financial instrums
for trading or speculative purposes. \&&imate that the combined translational and ttimsl impact of a 10% overall movement in exclengte
from December 31, 2010 (principally the U.K. Po8tdrling) would increase/decrease net income 2%.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
The financial statements of the Company are anntx#uds report as pages F-3 through F-17. An indesuch materials appears on page F-1.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountéson Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Attached as exhibits to this Form 10-K are ceddificns of our Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) andhigf Financial Officer (“CFO”)which are require
in accordance with Rule 13a-14 of the Securitiesharge Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Adihis “Controls and Proceduresgctior
includes information concerning the controls andtials evaluation referred to in the certifications

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of December 31, 2010, the Company, with theigipgtion of its CEO and CFO conducted an evalumatd the effectiveness of the design
operation of the Company’s disclosure controls anatedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 under the Siesufixchange Act of 1934 (théXchang
Act”). Based on that evaluation, our CEO and Ck@atuded that the Company’s disclosure controls pnodedures (as defined in Rule 18&-of the
Exchange Act) were effective as of December 310200here has been no change in the Comaimgernal control over financial reporting duritige
quarter ended December 31, 2010 that has mateatfgted, or is reasonably likely to materiallfeat, the Companyg' internal control over financ
reporting.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing mathtaining adequate internal control over finahegporting to provide reasonable assuri
regarding the reliability of our financial repogirand the preparation of financial statements ker@al purposes in accordance with generally aec
accounting principles. Internal control over fio& reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (i) pertain to the maintenance of reconds i
reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect ttemsactions and dispositions of the assets ofGbmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
transactions are recorded as necessary to peregamtion of financial statements in accordancé génerally accepted accounting principles, ant
receipts and expenditures of the Company are beade only in accordance with authorizations of ngeanzent and directors of the company; and
provide reasonable assurance regarding preventitimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, wsedisposition of the Comparg/assets that cot
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Management assessed our internal control over dinhreporting as of December 31, 2010. Managerbaséd its assessment on criteria establist
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued byGoenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TweadCommission (“COSO”).

Based on our assessment, management has condhadexit internal control over financial reportingsveffective as of December 31, 2010.

This annual report does not include an attestatéport of the Compang’ registered public accounting firm regarding ingrcontrol over financi
reporting. Management’s report was not subjedttestation by the Comparsytegistered public accounting firm pursuant torhies of the Securiti
and Exchange Commission that permit the Compampydeide only management’s report in this annuabrep

Item 9B. Other Information.
Not applicable

PART llI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance.
The information in response to this item is incagied by reference from the Proxy Statement sexténtitled “Election of Directors” andEkecutive
Officers.”

Executive Officers of the Registrant
The following list is included as an unnumberednitn Part 11l of this Report in lieu of being inded in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meetif
Stockholders to be held on May 27, 2011.

The following is a list of the names and ages berécutive officers of the registrant, indicatialy positions and offices with the registrant hbldeacl!
such person and each person’s principal occupatiod€mployment during at least the past five years

Name Age Position

Bart C. Shuldmal 53 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi

Steven A. DeMartint 41 President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer ardr8tary
Michael S. Kump 61 Executive Vice Preside-Engineering

Tracey S. Cherna 51 Executive Vice Preside-Sales and Marketin

Andrew J. Hoffmar 53 Senior Vice Preside-Operations

Benjamin C. Wyat 37 Vice Presider-Software Products and Business Developr
Christopher Gallett 33 Corporate Controlle

25




Table of Content

BART C. SHuLbMAN has been Chief Executive Officer, President andractbr of the Company since its formation in JA886. In February 2001, N
Shuldman was elected Chairman of the Boatdr. Shuldman relinquished the President titldeetfve June 1, 2010, to focus on new products
markets, international expansion and potential astipns.

SteveN A. DEMARTINO was named as TransAstPresident, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer 8edretary on June 1, 2010. Previously, Mr. DeMa
served as Executive Vice President, Chief Finan®idicer, Treasurer and Secretary from June 200M&y 2010, Senior Vice President, Finance
Information Technology from October 2001 to May 20®ice President and Corporate Controller fromudayn 1998 to October 2001, and Corpc
Controller from August 1996 to December 1997. BleMartino is a certified public accountant.

MicHAEL S. Kumpr was appointed Executive Vice President of Engimeein March 2002. He served as Senior Vice Presjdengineering from Jul
1996 to March 2002.

TrRACEY S. (HERNAY was appointed Executive Vice President, Sales aackdling in June 2010, with responsibility for theles and marketing of
TransAct printer products, consumables, serviceveslol sales worldwide. Previously, Ms. Chernay serms Senior Vice President, Sales and Mark
from June 2007 to May 2010, Sr. Vice President,Kdting & Sales, POS & Banking with the Company frdaty 2006 to June 2007, and joined Tran:
in May of 2005 as Senior Vice President, Marketiigior to joining TransAct, Ms. Chernay was emgdywith Xerox Corporation where she held
role of Manager, Worldwide Marketing since 2003¢ &fanager, Sales Operations from 2000 to 2002. j@hed Xerox Corporation in 1983.

ANDREW J. HoFFMAN was appointed Senior Vice President, OperationsTi@nsAct worldwide in November 2004. He servedVdse Presiden
Operations from September 1994 to November 2004.

BenJamin C. WYATT was appointed Vice President, Software ProductsBarginess Development in December 2010. Previphdty Wyatt served ¢
Vice President, Business Development for TransfamnfMay 2008 to November 2010. Prior to joinin@fsAct, Mr. Wyatt was employed with Pitr
Bowes Mail Services where he held the role of DeeBusiness Development since 2006, and Manageuisitions and Integration from 2004 to 2006.

CHRISTOPHER GALLETTA was appointed Corporate Controller in October 20Pieviously, Mr. Galletta served as TransAcAssistant Corpore
Controller from June 2005 to September 2007. Ragpining TransAct, Mr. Galletta was employed BgicewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an indeper
public accounting firm, most recently as a sengsogiate in the technology audit practice.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.
The information in response to this item is incogted by reference from the Proxy Statement sextémtitled Executive Compensation and Cer
Transactions” and “Compensation Discussion and ysigl’

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @vners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter.
The information in response to this item is incogted by reference from the Proxy Statement seefititled ‘Security Ownership of Certain Benefic
Owners and Management.”

Information regarding our equity compensation plas®f December 31, 2010 is as follows:

(©)

Number of
securities
remaining
@) available for
Number of (b) future issuanc
securities to b Weighted- under equity
issued upon average compensation
exercise of exercise price plans
outstanding of outstanding (excluding
options, options, securities
warrants and  warrants and reflected in
Plan categor rights rights column (a)
Equity compensation plans approved by security drsk
1996 Stock Pla 186,26° $ 3.7¢€ -
1996 Nor-Employee Director Pla 123,75( 12.9: -
2005 Equity Incentive Plan 623,10 6.3€ 534,19¢
Total 933,12: $ 6.71 534,19¢
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechotgiers:
2001 Employee Stock Plan 23,03¢ $ 5.42 -
956,16( $ 6.6¢ 534,19¢
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The TransAct Technologies Incorporated 2001 Empdytock Plan (the “2001 Employee Plangs adopted by our Board of Directors, without apgl
of our security holders, effective February 26, 20OQnder the 2001 Employee Plan, we may issuequatified stock options, shares of restricted sj
restricted units to acquire shares of common stsiick appreciation rights and limited stock apjatéan rights to key employees of TransAct or aif
our subsidiaries and to n@mployees who provide services to TransAct or ahpuw subsidiaries. The 2001 Employee Plan is adbtdred by ot
Compensation Committee, which has the authoritgdtermine the vesting period and other similarriei&ins and terms of awards, provided thai
exercise price of options granted under the play nw be less than the fair market value of theeulyihg shares on the date of grant.

In May 2005, our shareholders approved the adopifaine 2005 Equity Incentive Plan. In May 2010y shareholders approved an amendment t
2005 Equity Incentive Plan to increase the numifeshares of common stock which may be subject tardsvgranted under the plan from 600,000 |
current level of 1,200,000. No new awards willasailable for future issuance under any of ourtégsequity plans other than the 2005 Equity Ine
Plan.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transaains, and Director Independence.
The information in response to this item is incogted by reference from the Proxy Statement seatittitied ‘Certain Relationships and Rela
Transactions.”
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.
The information in response to this item is incogted by reference from the Proxy Statement seetiitied ‘Independent Registered Public Accoun
Firm’s Services and Fees.”

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits.
The exhibits filed as a part of this report aréelisin the accompanying Index to Exhibits.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be signedson it
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authdrize

TRANSACT TECHNOLOGIES INCORPORATEI

By: /s/ Bart C. Shuldma
Name: Bart C. Shuldman
Title: Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 18, 2011

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of the registra
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Bart C. Shuldma Chairman of the Board March 18, 2011
Bart C. Shuldman and Chief Executive Office

(Principal Executive Officer

/s/ Steven A. DeMartin President, Chief Financial Officer, March 2811
Steven A. DeMartino Treasurer and Secrete
(Principal Financial Officer

/s/ Christopher Gallett Corporate Controller March 18, 2011
Christopher Galletta (Principal Accounting Officer
/s/ Charles A. Dill Director March 18, 2011
Charles A. Dill
/sl Thomas R. Schwa Director March 18, 2011

Thomas R. Schwarz

/s/ Graham Y. Tanak Director March 18, 2011
Graham Y. Tanaka
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TRANSACT TECHNOLOGIES INCORPORATED
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Statemen

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm F-2
Consolidated balance sheets as of December 31,&@2009 F-3
Consolidated statements of income for the yearseimkecember 31, 2010, 2009 and 8 F-4

Consolidated statements of changes in sharehoktpigy and comprehensive income for the yearseébideember 31, 2010, 2009 F-5
and 20C8

Consolidated statements of cash flows for the yeaded December 31, 2010, 2009 and 8 F-6
Notes to consolidated financial stateme F-7

All other financial statement schedules are omittextause they are not applicable or the requirefbrimation is shown in th
consolidated financial statements or notes ther
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of TAahJechnologies Incorporated:

In our opinion, the consolidatedinancial statements listed in the accompanyinginpresent fairly, in all material respects, tmaficial position of
TransAct Technologies Incorporated and its subsa&laat December 31, 2010 and December 31, 20@%hamresults of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the periodeghBecember 31, 2010 in conformity with accounpnigciples generally accepted in the United States
of America. These financial statements are theaesibility of the Company's management. Our rasitility is to express an opinion on these finahci
statements based on our audits. We conductedudiitsaf these statements in accordance with tredsirds of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standaqgire that we plan and perform the audit to obtarsonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. Uit includes examining, on a test basis, evideupporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accountingipl&s used and significant estimates made by meanagt, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Hartford, Connecticut
March 18, 2011
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TRANSACT TECHNOLOGIES INCORPORATED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

December 31 December 31

2010 2009
Assets:
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $ 11,28 $ 10,017
Receivables, ne 10,86¢ 8,99¢
Inventories 12,79¢ 5,952
Refundable income tax: - 27C
Deferred tax asse 1,70¢ 2,24(
Other current assets 403 521
Total current assets 37,052 27,99¢
Fixed assets, ni 4,20( 4,551
Goodwill 1,46¢ 1,46¢
Deferred tax asse 78¢ 66¢
Intangible and other assets, net of accumulatedtaration of $475 and $390, respectively 111 214
6,56¢ 6,90¢
Total assets $ 43,62 $ 34,89¢
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 8,34: $ 5,052
Accrued liabilities 2,86¢ 1,89(
Deferred revenue 32C 58C
Total current liabilities 11,527 7,52
Deferred revenue, net of current port 29t 501
Deferred rent, net of current porti 39z 38t
Other liabilities 272 137
96( 1,02¢
Total liabilities 12,487 8,54t
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Shareholder equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 4,800,000 auwthdrinone issued and outstanc - -
Preferred stock, Series A, $0.01 par value, 2000@borized, none issued and outstant - -
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 20,000,000 authd@téecember 31, 2010 and 2009; 10,612,881 ant
10,528,209 shares issued; 9,426,443 and 9,364tE08ssoutstanding, at December 31, 2010 a
2009, respectivel 10€ 10E
Additional paic¢-in capital 22,87 21,82(
Retained earning 16,937 13,03:
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net o (69) (66)
Treasury stock, 1,186,438 and 1,164,100 sharessat (8,715 (8,53¢)
Total shareholders’ equity 31,13¢ 26,35¢
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 43,62. $ 34,89¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@sstents.
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Net sales
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating expense

TRANSACT TECHNOLOGIES INCORPORATED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In thousands, except per share data)

Engineering, design and product developn

Selling and marketin
General and administratiy

Legal fees associated with lawsuit (See Note 11)

Operating income

Interest and other income (expen:
Interest expens
Interest income
Other, net

Income before income tax
Income tax provision
Net income

Net income per common sha
Basic
Diluted

Shares used in g-share calculatior
Basic
Diluted

Year Ended December 3

2010 2009 2008
63,19« 58,34¢ 62,20°
40,64¢ 39,51 41,25,
22,54¢ 18,82¢ 20,95(

3,00( 2,78¢ 2,94:
6,407 5,821 6,07¢
7,28( 6,92¢ 7,04(
- - 3,02¢
16,68: 15,53! 19,08¢
5,861 3,29¢ 1,861
(96) (70 (70
87 20 59
(25) (33) 36¢
(39 (83) 357
5,827 3,21¢ 2,21¢
1,92¢ 1,07¢ 774
3,90 2,14( 1,442
0.4z 0.2¢ 0.1€
0.41 0.27 0.1F
9,39( 9,28¢ 9,30¢
9,59( 9,373 9,48¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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TRANSACT TECHNOLOGIES INCORPORATED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Balance, December 31, 20

Cancellation of restrictec
stock

Issuance of shares from
exercise of stock
options

Tax charge related to
vesting of restricted
stock

Purchase of treasury stc

Share-based
compensation expen

Comprehensive income
(loss):

Foreign currency
translation adj., net of
tax

Net income

Balance, December 31, 200

Cancellation of restrictec
stock

Issuance of shares from
exercise of stock
options

Tax benefit related to
employee stock sales
and vesting of restricte
stock

Share-based
compensation expen

Comprehensive incom

Foreign currency
translation adj., net of
tax

Net income

Balance, December 31, 200

Issuance of shares from
exercise of stock
options

Issuance of deferred sto
units

Tax benefit related to
employee stock sales
and vesting of restricte
stock

Purchase of treasury stc

Share-based
compensation expen

Comprehensive incom

Foreign currency
translation adj., net of
tax

Net income

Balance, December 31, 201

(In thousands, except share data)

Accumulated

Additional Other Total
Common Stocl Paic-in Retainec Treasury Comprehensiv Comprehensiv
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Stock Income (Loss Total Income

9,365,86/ $ 104 $ 19.87: $ 9,44¢ $ (7,999 $ 17¢ $ 21,60¢
(1,250 - - - - - -
66,97: 1 312 - - - 314
- - (98) - - - (98)
(130,100 - - - (54%) - (54%)
- - 803 - - - 803

- - - - - (24€) (24¢) $ (24¢€)

- - - 1,44 - - 1,44 1,444

9,301,48: 10t 20,89( 10,89: (8,53¢) (68) 23,28: % 1,19¢
(500) - - - - - -
63,12 - 211 - - - 211
- - 79 - - - 79
- - 64C - - - 64C

- - - - - 2 2 3 2

) - - 2,14( - - 2,14( 2,14(

9,364,10! 10t 21,82( 13,03 (8,53¢) (66) 26,35¢ % 2,14z
84,67: 1 392 - - - 393
- - 77 - - - 77
- - 21 - - - 21
(22,339 - - - @77 - )
- - 565 - - - 565

- - - - - (©) B $ ©)

- - - 3,90¢ - - 3,90¢ 3,90¢

9,426,44. $ 106 $ 2287 $ 16937 $ (8,719 $ (69) $ 31,13« $ 3,901

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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TRANSACT TECHNOLOGIES INCORPORATED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)
Year Ended December 3

2010 2009 2008
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 3,90¢ $ 2,14C $ 1,44¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigesl by operating activitie:
Shar-based compensation expel 565 64C 803
Incremental tax benefits from stock options exemt (22) (79) -
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,54¢ 1,757 1,847
Deferred income taxe 54C 1,002 592
Loss on sale of fixed asse¢ 2 - 3
Foreign currency transaction (gain) l¢ 21 33 (36¢)
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Receivable: (1,87¢) (263) (2,617
Inventories (6,85)) 3,96¢ (1,257%)
Refundable income taxi 27C (235) 14
Other current asse 11€ (169) 8
Other asset 1 34 29
Accounts payabl 3,28¢ 187 17¢
Accrued liabilities and other liabilities 628 (642) 19
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,13: 8,37: 701
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of fixed asst (1,107 (643) (979
Proceeds from sale of assets 10 - -
Net cash used in investing activities (1,097 (643) (979
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from stock option exerci: 398 211 314
Purchases of common stock for treas 77 - (54%)
Incremental tax benefits from stock options exetis 21 79 -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 237 29C (229)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (4) 3) (54)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiv: 1,26¢ 8,017 (561
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 10,017 2,00( 2,561
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 11,28¢ $ 10,017 $ 2,00(
Supplemental cash flow informatic
Interest paic $ 51 $ 51 $ 51
Income taxes pai 74C 482 34

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédistents.
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TRANSACT TECHNOLOGIES INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of business

TransAct Technologies Incorporated (“TransAct” be t‘Company”),which has its headquarters in Hamden, CT and itegoy operating facility i
Ithaca, NY, operates in one operating segment: etafecific printers for transactidased industries. These industries include cagiaming, lottery
banking, kiosk and point-of-sale. Our printers designed based on market-specific requirementsaaedsold under the Ithaca@nd Epic produ
brands. We distribute our products through OEMsue-added resellers, selected distributors, aretly to endusers. Our product distribution sp
across the Americas, Europe, the Middle East, Afrissia, Australia, the Caribbean Islands and tbetts Pacific. We also generate revenue fron
after-market side of the business, providing pris&vice, supplies and spare parts.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

Principles of consolidation: The accompanying consolidated financial statemevere prepared on a consolidated basis to inclbdeaccounts
TransAct and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. Alidrcompany accounts, transactions and unrealizgft prere eliminated in consolidation.

Reclassifications: Certain amounts in the prior years’ financiatestaents have been reclassified to conform to theentiyear’s presentation.

Use of estimates: The accompanying consolidated financial statemesmtre prepared using estimates and assumptionaftbet the reported amounts
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, andbdise of contingent assets and liabilities ashef date of the consolidated financial statementsthe
reported amounts of revenues and expenses duengplorting period. Actual results could differfrahose estimates.

Segment reporting: We apply the provisions of the Financial Account®@gndards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards @odliion (“ASC”) 280
“Segment Reporting.” We view our operations anchagge our business as one segment: the designogevaht, manufacture and sale of transaction-
based printers and printer-related service, supplies and replac¢marts . Factors used to identify Trans8csingle operating segment include
organizational structure of the Company and tharfaial information available for evaluation by tttg@ef operating decisiomaker in making decisio
about how to allocate resources and assess perfoema

Cash and cash equivalents. We consider all highly liquid investments withnaaturity date of three months or less at date othmse to be ca
equivalents.

Allowance for doubtful accounts: We establish an allowance for doubtful accountsrtsure trade receivables are valued appropria®ly maintain s
allowance for doubtful accounts based on a vargdtyactors, including the length of time receivablare past due, significant otise events ar
historical experience. We record a specific alloee for individual accounts when we become awara elistomes inability to meet its financi
obligations, such as in the case of bankruptcpdsior deterioration in the custon®operating results or financial position. If cinestances related
customers change, we would further adjust estimafethe recoverability of receivables. Allowancis doubtful accounts on accounts receiv
balances were $57,000 as of December 31, 2010G0®I 2

The following table summarizes the activity recatde the valuation account for accounts receivable:

Year ended December =

(In thousands) 2010 2009 2008

Balance, beginning of peric $ 57 $ 55 $ 62
Additions charged to costs and exper - 3 -
Deductions - (2) (7)
Balance, end of period $ 57 $ 57 $ 55

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (ipally standard cost, which approximates actuatan a first-in, firseut basis) ¢
market. We review market value based on histotisalge and estimates of future demand. Basedese tleviews, inventory writdewns are recorde
as necessary, to reflect estimated obsolescencesgexguantities and market value.

Fixed assets: Fixed assets are stated at cost. Depreciatimtaded using the straigline method over the estimated useful lives. Tétareated usefi
life of tooling is five years; machinery and equigmh is ten years; furniture and office equipmeriivis to ten years; and computer software and eqaix
is three to seven years. Leasehold improvemesetsuaortized over the shorter of the term of thedear the useful life of the asset. Costs reléb
repairs and maintenance are expensed as incuftesl.costs of sold or retired assets are removed fre related asset and accumulated deprec
accounts and any gain or loss is recognized. Reiien expense was $1,446,000, $1,655,000 andl4,0a@0 in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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TRANSACT TECHNOLOGIES INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (comued)

Leases. Rent expense under non-cancelable operatingderisie scheduled rent increases or free rent peréwd accounted for on a straidihe basi:
over the lease term, beginning on the date of obwtr physical use of the asset or of initial pessen. The amount of the excess of stralgt@-ren
expense over scheduled payments is recorded ateaedkliability. Construction allowances and atlseich lease incentives are recorded as de
credits, and are amortized on a strailyid- basis as a reduction of rent expense beginimirthe period they are deemed to be earned, wiecterall
coincides with the occupancy date.

Goodwill:  We account for goodwill in accordance with theyisions of ASC 350, “Intangibles - Goodwill andh@t.” We test goodwill annually fi
impairment, or whenever events or changes in cistantes indicate that the carrying value may natbeverable. We have performed an impair
test as of December 31, 2010 and determined thampairment has occurred.

Revenue recognition:  Our typical contracts include the sale of printeshich are sometimes accompanied by separatéded extended warrar
contracts. We also sell replacement parts, conslasaand other repair services (sometimes purdoantlti-year product maintenance contracts), w
are not included in the original printer sale anel ardered by the customer as needed. We recogaeaue pursuant to the guidance within ASC
“Revenue Recognition”ASC 605). Specifically, revenue is recognized wheidence of an arrangement exists, delivery (baseshipping terms, whi
are generally FOB shipping point) has occurred seiéng price is fixed and determinable, and adlibility is reasonably assured. We recognizemas
from the sale of printers to our distributors aedellers on a seiit basis and on substantially the same terms aeagnize revenue from all our ot
customers. We provide for an estimate of prodeizttrns and price protection based on historicabggpce at the time of revenue recognition.

We account for all revenue arrangements involvingtiple deliverables in accordance with ASC 605-28ultiple-Element Arrangements.’For thes
arrangements, we consider whether the deliverablas arrangement are within the scope of exishiginerievel GAAP and apply such literature to
extent that it provides guidance regarding whetbeseparate multipldeliverable arrangements and how to allocate vatneng those separate unit:
accounting. We also determine whether revenuageraents consist of more than one unit of accogratrinception of the arrangement and as eact
in the arrangement is delivered. We allocate aearent consideration to the separate units of adtmubased on the relative fair value for all urot
accounting in the arrangement, except where amalloisable to the delivered units is limited tottkdich is contingent upon the delivery of additd
deliverables or meeting other specified performasmalitions.

Revenue related to extended warranty and produicttem@ance contracts is recognized pursuant to AS:=20-25, Separately Priced Extended Warr:
and Product Maintenance Contract®Ursuant to this provision, revenue related to se¢ply priced product maintenance contracts is rdedean:
recognized over the term of the maintenance perivd.record deferred revenue for advance paymentived from customers for maintenance contr

Our customers have the right to return productsdbanot function properly within a limited timetef delivery. We monitor and track product retuans
record a provision for the estimated future retusased on historical experience. Returns haverfisily been within expectations and the provis
established.

We offer some of our customers price protectiommsncentive to carry inventory of our product.e$h price protection plans provide that if we Ic
prices, we will credit them for the price decreasenventory they hold. Our customers typicallyrgdimited amounts of inventory, and we infrequg
lower prices on current products. As a result,a@amunts paid under these plans have not beenialater

We charge our customers for shipping and handimgices. The amounts billed to customers are dezbas revenue when the product ships. Any
incurred related to these services are includexb#t of sales.

Concentration of credit risk: Financial instruments that potentially exposentict to concentrations of credit risk are limited cash and ca
equivalents held by our banks in excess of inslingitt and accounts receivable.

Accounts receivable from customers representing @0#hore of total accounts receivable were as ¥ato

December 31
2010 2009
Customer A 17% 24%
Customer E 22% 18%
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TRANSACT TECHNOLOGIES INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (comued)

Sales to customers representing 10% or more dfrietasales were as follows:

Year ended December

2010 2009 2008
Customer A 12% 19% 28%
Customer E 14% 10% *
Customer C * 12% *

* -Customers represent less than 10% of total nes

Warranty: We generally warrant our products for up to 24nthe and record the estimated cost of such prodactanties at the time the sal¢
recorded. Estimated warranty costs are based agtorl past experience of product repairs andetaed estimated cost of labor and material to nla¢
necessary repairs.

The following table summarizes the activity recatde the accrued product warranty liability:

Year ended December

(In thousands) 2010 2009 2008

Balance, beginning of peric $ 23z % 39 % 50C
Accruals for warranties issued during the pe 84 112 297
Changes in estimat: 172 (96) (39
Settlements during the period (240) (176€) (370
Balance, end of period $ 24¢  $ 23z $ 39:

Approximately $71,000 and $64,000 of the accruedipct warranty liability were classified as longrteat December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Research and development expenses: Research and development expenses include engigedesign and product development expenses redur
connection with specialized engineering and desigimtroduce new products and to customize exispirgducts, and are expensed as a compon
operating expenses as incurred. We recorded ajppaitedy $3,000,000, $2,788,000 and $2,942,000 sfarch and development expenses in 2010,
and 2008, respectively.

Costs incurred in researching and developing a cbengoftware product are charged to expense tectinological feasibility has been establishedtie
product. Once technological feasibility is estsidid, all material software costs are capitalizétiinv Intangible and other assets in our consodic
balance sheet until the product is available faregal release to customers. Judgment is requirddtermining when technological feasibility ofraguc
is established. We have determined that technedbdeasibility for our software products is readhafter all highrisk development issues have b
documented in a formal detailed plan design. Theréization of these costs will be included in cadtrevenue over the estimated life of
product. During 2010 we began the development néwa software product that enables casino custohoepsint coupons and promotions at the
machine. As of December 31, 2010, we have capial$130,000 of developments costs for such sofvthere has been no amortization of capita
software development costs.

Advertising: Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Aibieg expenses, which are included in selling aradtketing expense on the accompan
consolidated statements of operations, for 2010920hd 2008 totaled $824,000, $763,000 and $916r86pectively. These expenses include items
as consulting and professional services, tradeshamgsprint advertising.

Restructuring:  We continually evaluate our cost structure taueashat it is appropriately positioned to respémdhanging market conditions. We rec
pre-tax restructuring charges in accordance witlc 480-10-25-4, “Exit or Disposal Cost Obligations.”

Incometaxes. The income tax amounts reflected in the accomipgriynancial statements are accounted for undetigtbility method in accordance w
ASC 740, “Income Taxes.Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognfaedhe estimated future tax consequences atttibeitto differences betwe
the financial statement carrying amounts of exgstiassets and liabilities and their respective taseb and operating loss and tax ¢
carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilises measured using enacted tax rates in effecthtoryear in which those temporary differences
expected to be recovered or settled. We assedigdlirood that net deferred tax assets will balized
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TRANSACT TECHNOLOGIES INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (comued)

from future taxable income, and to the extent tiatbelieve that realization is not likely, we eéitstba valuation allowance. In accordance with ABID
we identified, evaluated and measured the amoutengfits to be recognized for our tax return posg. See Note 13 for information regarding
accounting for income taxes.

Foreign currency trandation: The financial position and results of operatiofi®ur foreign subsidiary in the United Kingdom aneasured using loc
currency as the functional currency. Assets aabillties of such subsidiary have been translat¢d U.S. dollars at the yeand exchange rate, rela
revenues and expenses have been translated atettagy@ exchange rate for the year, and sharehbleguity has been translated at historical exch
rates. The resulting translation gains or lossespf tax, are recorded in stockholdezguity as a cumulative translation adjustment, tlisca compone
of accumulated other comprehensive income. Foreigmency transaction gains and losses, includhggé related to intercompany balances
recognized in other income (expense).

Comprehensive income: ASC 220, “Comprehensive Incomegquires that items defined as comprehensive incanhess be separately classified in
financial statements and that the accumulated balahother comprehensive income or loss be repegparately from accumulated deficit and additi
paid-incapital in the equity section of the balance sh&éé include the foreign currency translation atipent, net of tax, related to our subsidiary ir
United Kingdom within our calculation of compreh&msincome.

Share-based Payments: At December 31, 2010, we had stock-based employemensation plans, which are described more falljote 12 - Stock
incentive plans. We account for those plans utftierecognition and measurement principles of A8, TCompensation — Stock

Compensation.” Share-based compensation expenseasured at the grant date, based on the estifi@@tedlue of the award, and is recognized as
expense over the employee’s requisite service geNde have no awards with market or performancelitions.

We use the Black-Scholes optipricing model to calculate the fair value of shbhesed awards. The key assumptions for this valuatiethod incluc
the expected term of the option, stock price viitatirisk-free interest rate, dividend yield, market priceoaf underlying stock and exercise price. N
of these assumptions are judgmental and highlyitbemsn the determination of compensation expeniseaddition, we estimate forfeitures wil
recognizing compensation expense, and we adjustsiimate of forfeitures over the requisite seryiedod based on the extent to which actual farfek
differ, or are expected to differ, from such estiesa Changes in estimated forfeitures are recedrtizrough a cumulative trugs adjustment in the peri
of change and also impacts the amount of comp@msetipense to be recognized in future periods.

Net income and loss per share:  We report net income or loss per share in acemelavith ASC 260, “Earnings per Share (EP®)ider this guidanc
basic EPS, which excludes dilution, is computediivyding income or loss available to common shalédis by the weighted average number of cor
shares outstanding for the period. Unvested ogsttistock is excluded from the calculation of vindgl average common shares for basic EPS. D
EPS reflects the potential dilution that could acdusecurities or other contracts to issue commstotk were exercised or converted into com
stock. Diluted EPS includes restricted stock antheimoney stock options using the treasury stock mettigting a loss period, the assumed exerci
in-the-money stock options has an anti-dilutiveeeff and therefore, these instruments are exclérded the computation of dilutive EPS. See Note-14
Earnings per Share.

3. Recently issued accounting pronouncements

Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements:  In October 2009, the FASB establishtbé accounting and reporting guidance for arranggsniacluding
multiple revenuegenerating activities. This guidance provides amsamits to the criteria for separating deliverabiesasuring and allocating arrangen
consideration to one or more units of accountirtge @amendments also establish a selling price leieyefor determining the selling price of a deliveles
Significantly enhanced disclosures are also reduie provide information about a vendor's multigleliverable revenue arrangements, inclu
information about the nature and terms, significdativerables, and its performance within arrangasieThe amendments also require provi
information about the significant judgments madd elnanges to those judgments and about how théapph of the relative sellingrice method affec
the timing or amount of revenue recognition. Theeadments are effective prospectively for revenuangements entered into or materially modifie
the fiscal years beginning on or after June 1502®&hrly application is permitted. Currently thgsevisions do not have an impact on our consoli
financial statements and we do not anticipate tpesesions will have a material impact on our aaitated financial statements.

Financing Receivables. In July 2010 the FASB issued new accounting gutdao improve the disclosures that an entity mlesiabout the credit qual

of its financing receivables and the related allowea for credit losses. Accounts receivable withmie exceeding one year are considered fir
receivables subject to the provisions of this séadd Our trade receivables, which arose from #he af goods or services,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3. Recently issued accounting pronouncements (comtied)
have a contractual maturity of one year or lessthecefore are not subject to the provisions of gtandard. We do not have any significant retdés
with a term exceeding one year and as a resulstrelard does not have a material impact on us.
4. Inventories

The components of inventories are:

December 31

(In thousands) 2010 2009
Raw materials and purchased component | $ 5077 $ 4,46¢
Work-in-process 2 2
Finished goods 7,71¢ 1,48¢
$ 12,798 $ 5,952

5. Fixed assets

The components of fixed assets, net are:
December 31

(In thousands) 2010 2009
Tooling, machinery and equipme $ 12,82 $ 13,72:
Furniture and office equipme 1,65¢ 1,70¢
Computer software and equipme 5,12¢ 4,92
Leasehold improvements 1,88¢ 1,87¢
21,49¢ 22,22:
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (17,296) (17,67()
$ 4200 $ 4,551

6. Intangible assets

Identifiable intangible assets are recorded inrigille and other assets in the accompanying cafaelil balance sheets. Ildentifiable intangibletasze
comprised of the following:

December 31

2010 2009
Gross Accumulate Gross Accumulate
(In thousands) Amount Amortizatior Amount Amortizatior
Purchased technolog $ 364 $ (339 $ 364 $ (273)
Covenant not to compe 14¢€ (115) 14¢€ (94)
Patents 57 (26) 57 (23
Total $ 567 $ (475) $ 567 $ (390

Amortization expense was $85,000 in 2010 and $&j802009 and 2008, respectively. Amortization enge for each of the next five years en
December 31 is expected to be as follows: $54,0@D11; $13,000 in 2012; $3,000 in 2013; $3,00R004; $3,000 in 2015; and $16,000 thereafter.
7. Accrued liabilities

The components of accrued liabilities (current jpoitare:
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7. Accrued liabilities (continued)

December 31

(In thousands) 2010 2009
Payroll and fringe benefit $ 1,73¢  $ 1,18¢
Income taxe: 35¢ 6
Warranty 17¢ 16¢
Professional and consultit 111 171
Other 481 35E
$ 2,868 $ 1,89(

8. Accrued business consolidation and restructuringxpenses

In 2009, due to an adverse economic climate, a1, due to the completion of the move of a @&l portion of our printer production to a cau
manufacturer in China, we initiated and completedain restructuring programs to better utilize warkforce. These restructuring activities reduced
number of employees and caused us to incur costenfiployee termination benefits related to the eyg#® reductions. During 2010 and 2009,
recorded pre-tax restructuring charges of approtelp&156,000 and $211,000, respectively, in acaocd with ASC 420-10-25-4FXit or Disposal Co:
Obligations.” These ongme termination benefit charges have been includigiin general and administrative expenses ireiteompanying consolidat
statements of income. The restructuring activityirty 2010 and 2009 included severance costs relatetie termination of 16 and 17 employ
respectively.

The following table summarizes the activity recatde accrued restructuring expenses during 20102808, and is included in accrued liabilities ie
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

December 31

(In thousands) 2010 2009

Accrual balance, beginning of peri $ 13 18
Severance charg 15€ 211
Cash payments (169 (216)
Accrual balance, end of period $ - $ 13

9. Retirement savings plan

We maintain a 401(k) plan under which all ftithe employees are eligible to participate at tegibning of each month immediately following theate
of hire. We match employees’ contributions atte & 50% of employees’ contributions up to thstfi8% of the employeesbmpensation contributed
the 401(k) plan. Our matching contributions we223%000, $237,000 and $244,000 in 2010, 2009 a68,2@spectively.

10. Borrowings

On November 28, 2006, we signed a five-year $20@@credit facility (the “TD Bank Credit Facility'with TD Bank. The TD Bank Credit Facil
provides for a $20,000,000 revolving credit lingiexg on November 28, 2011. Borrowings under tinoiving credit line bear a floating rate of ints
at the prime rate minus one percent and are crilited by a lien on all of our assets. We alsp adee of 0.25% on unused borrowings unde
revolving credit line. The total deferred finangioosts relating to expenses incurred to completel'D Bank Credit Facility was $94,000. The TD E
Credit Facility imposes certain quarterly financ@@venants on us and restricts, among other thiogsability to incur indebtedness, the paymer
dividends on our common stock and the creationtbémliens. We were in compliance with all finaalctovenants of the TD Bank Credit Facility
December 31, 2010.

As of December 31, 2010, we had no outstandingoléngs on the revolving credit line. Undrawn contments under the TD Bank Credit Facility w
$20,000,000 at December 31, 2010.

11. Commitments and contingencies

We had been involved in patent litigation with Fefuogic, Inc. (“FutureLogic”)with respect to our patents U.S. Patent 6,924,948 &.S. Patel
7,099,035. On May 13, 2008, we signed a Patergrise and Settlement Agreement with FutureLogicgbtited the current patent litigation and all @
legal matters outstanding between the two partiésder the Patent License and Settlement AgreenfartireLogic agreed to license our dual
technology for printers and upgrade kits that zeilthe patented technology. The license grantsrélubgic worldwide, perpetual rights for U.S. Pa
6,924,903, U.S. Patent 7,099,035, related apphicatand patents, and foreign counterparts.
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11. Commitments and contingencies (continued)

At December 31, 2010, we were the lessee on opgriases for equipment and real property. Repérse was approximately $1,047,000, $1,02¢
and $1,030,000 in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectivdimimum aggregate rental payments required ungerating leases that have initial or remai
non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one yeaf Becember 31, 2010 are as follows: $952,00@0mh1; $598 ,000 in 2012; $360,0002013
$365,000 in 2014; $375,000 in 2015; and $460,066ctfter.

12. Stock incentive plans

Stock incentive plans. We currently have four primary stock incentive @athe 1996 Stock Plan, which provided for the godrawards to officers ai
other key employees of the Company; the 1996 DirstiStock Plan, which provided for non-discretipnawards to noremployee directors; the 2C
Employee Stock Plan, which provided for the grandwards to key employees of the Company and atbaremployees who provided services to
Company; and the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan, whiobvides for awards to executives, key employegsctbrs and consultants. The plans gene
provide for awards in the form of: (i) incentiveosk options, (ii) norgualified stock options, (iii) restricted stocky)(irestricted stock units, (v) stc
appreciation rights or (vi) limited stock appremat rights. However, the 2001 Employee Stock Pdmes not provide for incentive stock opi
awards. Options granted under these plans haveissgrices equal to 100% of the fair market valfithe common stock at the date of grant. Op
granted have a ten-year term and generally vest avBree- to fiverear period, unless automatically accelerated éotain defined events. As of M
2005, no new awards will be made under the 1996kSdan, the 1996 DirectorStock Plan or the 2001 Employee Stock Plan. Under2005 Equit
Incentive Plan, we may authorize up to 1,200,006hafres of TransAct common stock. At Decembe2810, approximately 534,196 shares of com
stock remained available for issuance under thé& Zifuity Incentive Plan.

Under the assumptions indicated below, the weightextage fair value of stock option grants for tkarg ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 200
$7.45, $2.56 and $5.85, respectively. The tablevbéndicates the key assumptions used in the opt@luation calculations for options granted in
years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 disdussion of our methodology for developing eatthe assumptions used in the valuation model:

Year ended December

2010 2009 2008
Expected option terr 6.1 year 6.0 year 5.7 year
Expected volatility 66.6% 67.4% 61.7%
Risk-free interest rat 2.3% 2.0% 3.(%
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

Expected Option Term This is the weighted average period of time overcitvithe options granted are expected to remaintandsg giving
consideration to our historical exercise patter@ptions granted have a maximum term of ten yeArs.increase in the expected term will incre
compensation expense.

Expected Volatility -The stock volatility for each grant is measuredigghe weighted average of historical daily pribarges of our common stock o
the most recent period approximately equal to tkpeeted option term of the grant. An increase lie expected volatility factor will incree
compensation expense.

Risk-Free Interest Rate Fhis is the U.S. Treasury rate in effect at theetiof grant having a term approximately equal to ¢lpected term of tl
option. An increase in the risk-free interest naiktincrease compensation expense.

Dividend Yield -We have not made any dividend payments on our camstack, and we have no plans to pay dividendsiénforeseeable future. .
increase in the dividend yield will decrease congagion expense.

For the years ending December 31, 2010, 2009 af8, 2@e recorded $565,000, $640,000, and $803,080arebased compensation costs, respecti
in our consolidated statements of income. We dEmbincome tax benefits of $186,000, $214,000, $280,000 in 2010, 2009, and 2008 respecti
related to share-based compensation. At Decenihe@03.0, these benefits are recorded as a defexxaabset in the consolidated balance sheet.
The 1996 Stock Plan, 1996 Directors’ Stock Pla®12Bmployee Stock Plan and 2005 Equity IncentiaRiption activity is summarized below:
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12. Stock incentive plans (continued)

Weighted
Number of Average Weighted Average Remaining Aggregate
Shares Exercise Prict Contractual Tern Intrinsic Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 939,02¢ $ 6.37
Granted 127,50( 7.4t
Exercisec (84,677 4.64
Forfeited (28,900 5.04
Expired (10,000 8.3
Outstanding at December 31, 2010 942.95¢ $ 6.6¢ 5.4year $ 3,376,00
Options exercisable at December 31, 2010 550,95¢ $ 7.27 3.5year $ 1,983,00:!
Options vested or expected to vest 905,40: $ 6.72 5.2year $ 3,249,00

Shares that are issued upon exercise of emploge& sptions are newly issued shares and not isoed treasury stock. As of December 31, 2
unrecognized compensation cost related to stoclorgptotaled $1,019,000, which is expected to lmegrized over a weighted average period o
years.

The total intrinsic value of stock options exerdiseas $299,000, $161,000 and $402,000 and the faitabalue of stock options vested was $424,
$341,000, and $247,000 during the years ended De=eB1, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Casbived from option exercises were $393,
$211,000 and $314,000 for 2010, 2009 and 2008entisely. We recorded a realized tax benefit il@@&rom equitybased awards of $21,000 relate
options exercised which has been included as a eoem of cash flows from financing activities iretbonsolidated statement of cash flows.

Restricted stock: Under the 1996 Stock Plan, 2001 Employee Stock &mt2005 Equity Incentive Plan, we have granted shafesstricted commc
stock, for no consideration, to our officers, dies and certain key employees. R estricted statikity for the 1996 Stock Plar2001 Employee Sto
Plan and 2005 Equity Incentive Plan is summarizedv:

Weighted
Average Gran

Date Fair

Shares Values

Nonvested shares at December 31, Z 23,000 $ 10.97
Granted - -
Vested (20,000 10.5¢
Canceled - -
Nonvested shares at December 31, Z 3,00 $ 13.7¢

As of December 31, 2010, unrecognized compensatishrelated to restricted stock totaled $20,00fickvis expected to be recognized over a weig
average period of less than 1 year.

We paid a portion of the 2009 incentive bonus Far thief executive officer and chief financial offi in the form of 10,204 deferred stock units v&
corresponding credit recorded to Additional Pai€apital in the amount of $77,000. Such defertedksunits were granted in March 2010 and werey
vested at the time of grant. These units will baverted three years from the grant date to shafrése Company’s common stock on a onedat-
basis. The weighted average exercise price ofdéferred stock units was $7.54, the aggregatensitrivalue was $19,000 and the weighted av«
remaining contractual term was 2.2 years.

13. Income taxes

The components of the income tax provision ar@bgs:
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13. Income taxes (continued)

Year Ended December 3

(In thousands) 2010 2009 2008
Current:
Federal $ 1,297 $ 53 $ -
State 51 13 16
Foreign 35 5 16€
Deferred:
Federal 457 891 38¢
State 82 11C 207
Foreign 1 1 (1)
Income tax provision $ 1,92 % 1,07 % 774

At December 31, 2010, we have $285,000 of stateopetating loss carryforwards that begin to expire2027, and no federal net operating
carryforwards. We also have approximately $99,B06tate tax credit carryforwards that begin toiexjn 2010. We had foreign income (loss) be
taxes of $35,000, ($49,000) and $541,000 in 200092nd 2008, respectively.

Deferred income taxes arise from temporary diffeesnbetween the tax basis of assets and liabiléres their reported amounts in the finar
statements. Our gross deferred tax assets arnlitiesbwere comprised of the following:

December 31

(In thousands) 2010 2009
Deferred tax asset
Net operating losse $ 114  $ 12¢
Capitalized research and developmr 278 342
Inventory reserve 1,21( 1,06¢€
Deferred revenu 17€ 91
Warranty reserv 87 82
Stock compensation exper 58€ 421
Foreign tax and other cred 65 91¢
Other liabilities and reserves 562 43E
Gross deferred tax assi 3,07: 3,47¢
Valuation allowance (125) (76)
Net deferred tax assets 2,94¢ 3,407
Gross deferred tax liabilitie
Depreciatior 392 458
Other 62 41
Net deferred tax liabilities 454 494
Total net deferred tax assets $ 2,49 $ 2,90¢

The following table summarizes the activity recatde the valuation allowance on the deferred taetss

Year ended December

(In thousands) 2010 2009 2008

Balance, beginning of peric $ 76 3% 26 $ >
Additions charged to income tax expel 55 50 26
Reductions credited to income tax expense (6) - -
Balance, end of period $ 128 $ 7€ $ 26

Differences between the U.S. statutory federalimedax rate and our effective income tax rate aedyaed below:
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13. Income taxes (continued)

Year Ended December 3

2010 2009 2008
Federal statutory tax ra 34.(% 34.(% 34.(%
State income taxes, net of federal income t: 1.5 2.5 6.€
Tax benefit from tax credits, net of valuation albnce (2.9 (4.5) (5.6)
Foreign rate differentic - - (2.9)
Valuation allowance and tax accru 0.8 0.8 1.2
Permanent item (0.2 0.7 14
Other (0.2 - (0.3
Effective tax rate 33.(% 33.5% 34.9%

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, we had approxim&k2y1,000 and $189,000 of total gross unrecogntagdbenefits that, if recognized, wo
favorably affect the effective income tax rate iy duture periods. We are not aware of any evérds could occur within the next twelve months
could cause a significant change in the total amafirunrecognized tax benefits. A tabular recaatidbn of the gross amounts of unrecognizec
benefits at the beginning and end of the year fel&sns:

(In thousands) 2010 2009
Unrecognized tax benefits as of Janua $ 18¢ $ 16C
Tax positions taken during the current per 61 29
Settlement: - -
Lapse of statute of limitations (49 -
Unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31 $ 201 $ 18¢

We are subject to U.S. federal income tax as welhaome tax of certain state and foreign jurisditd. We have substantially concluded all U.Sefa
income tax, state and local, and foreign tax matterough 2003. During 2008, a limited scope exatin of our 2005 and 2006 federal tax returns
completed. However, our federal tax returns far ylears 2004 through 2009 remain open to exammatrious state and foreign tax jurisdiction
years remain open to examination as well, thoughbsbeve that any additional assessment would bematarial to the consolidated finan
statements. No federal, state or foreign tax glictfon income tax returns are currently under exation.

We do not anticipate that the total unrecognizedttanefits will significantly change due to thetkshent of audits and the expiration of statut
limitations prior to December 31, 2011.

We recognize interest and penalties related torntaioetax positions in income tax expense. As et@mnber 31, 2010 and 2009, we have approxin
$4,000 and $12,000 of accrued interest and pesattlated to uncertain tax positions.

14. Earnings per share
For 2010, 2009 and 2008, earnings per share wenpuied as follows (in thousands, except per shauats):
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14. Earnings per share (continued)

Year Ended December 3

2010 2009 2008

Net income $ 3,90/ $ 2,14C $ 1,44¢
Shares
Basic: Weighted average common shares outstal 9,39( 9,28¢ 9,30¢
Add: Dilutive effect of outstanding options asetetined by the treasury stock method 20C 88 181
Diluted: Weighted average common and common etgnvahares outstanding 9,59( 9,377 9,48¢
Net income per common sha

Basic $ 04z $ 0.2: $ 0.1€

Diluted 0.41 0.2t 0.1

We compute earnings per share using thedlass method, which is an earnings allocation fdantihat determines earnings per share for commuok
and participating securities. Restricted stockntgd by the Company is considered a participatigusty since it contains a ndarfeitable right t
dividends.

Certain stock-based awards were not included irfullgyear computation of earnings per diluted ghbecause the effect would be anti-dilutive. Anti-
dilutive stock options, restricted shares and defestock units excluded from the computation ohiegs per dilutive share were 367,750, 525,500
258,250, at December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 rigplgc

15. Stock repurchase program

On May 27, 2010, our Board of Directors approvedeav stock repurchase program (the “Stock RepurcRasgram”). Under the Stock Repurch:
Program, we are authorized to repurchase up t@8®@MO0 of our outstanding shares of common stawk time to time in the open market over a three-
year period ending May 27, 2013, depending on ntagkaditions, share price and other factors. A®etember 31, 2010, we repurchased a to!
22,338 shares of common stock for approximately7$100 under this program, at an average price @5pper share. As of December 31, 2010
repurchased a total of 1,186,438 shares of comruak $or approximately $8,715,000 under all of stock repurchase programs, at an average pr
$7.35 per share. We use the cost method to acéoutreasury stock purchases, under which theepoiid for the stock is charged to the treasurgk
account.

16. Geographic Area Information

Information regarding our operations by geograiEa is contained in the following table. Theseants in the geographic area table are based «
location of the customer and vendor.

Year Ended December 3

(In thousands) 2010 2009 2008
Net sales
United State: $ 4410 $ 4589( $ 52,08:
International 19,09: 12,45¢ 10,12¢
Total $ 63,19¢ $ 58,34t $ 62,207
Fixed assets, ne
United State: $ 282: $ 3,398 $ 4,19(
International 1,377 1,15¢ 1,37¢
Total $ 4200 $ 4551 $ 5,56:

Sales to international customers were 30%, 21%.1&8¢l in 2010, 2009, and 2008 respectively. Sadsurope represented 43%, 45%, and 56%, sc
the Pacific Rim (which includes Australia and Asiapresented 18%, 31%, and 21%, and sales to Caeadesented 20%, 11%, and 8% of f
international sales in 2010, 2009, and 2008 regmdygt International londived assets consist of net fixed assets locateniaforeign subsidiary in tl
United Kingdom as well as our contract manufacwmerChina, Malaysia and Mexico.
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17. Quarterly results of operations (unaudited)

Our quarterly results of operations for 2010 an@®are as follows:

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

2010:

20009:

Net sales
Gross profil
Net income

Net income per shar

Basic
Diluted

Net sales
Gross profil
Net income

Net income per shar

Basic
Diluted

F-18

Quarter Endes

March 31 June 3( September 3 December 3:

$ 14,20¢ $ 16,44: $ 16,36¢ $ 16,17+
5,18¢ 6,15¢ 5,557 5,64

62¢ 1,14¢ 1,052 1,07¢

0.07 0.12 0.11 0.12

0.07 0.12 0.11 0.11

$ 12,20: $ 14,23t $ 17,98: $ 13,92¢
4,12¢ 4,85¢ 5,62¢ 4,32

121 64¢ 1,18¢ 18€

0.01 0.07 0.12 0.0z

0.01 0.07 0.12 0.0z
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The following exhibits are filed herewith.

Exhibit

23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers L

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant $ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer puent to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted purgoaBéction 906 of the Sarban@siey Act of
2002.

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer puiant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted purdoaBection 906 of the Sarban@siey Act of
2002.



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémdlee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N83:3703, 333-32705, 333-49530, 333-49532, 333
49540, 333-59570, 333-62269, 333-107870, 333-13262#333170515) of TransAct Technologies Incorporated of m@port dated March 18, 2C
relating to the financial statements, which appé@athkis Form 10-K.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers L
Hartford, Connecticut
March 18, 2011







Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Bart C. Shuldman, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of TransAct Technologies Incorporate

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortainuntrue statement of a material fact or omgttde a material fact necessary to mak
statements made, in light of the circumstances uwtiech such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,adiner financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects
financial condition, results of operations and cisWvs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this repo

4. The registrarg’ other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure conteoisl procedures (as definec
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) aredriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregaosed such disclosure controls and proceduresetalesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepal

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtide reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallygedeaccounting principle

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtindls report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; i

d) Disclosed in this report any change in tbgistrant’s internal control over financial repogdithat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has materially affected, or is reasoy
likely to materially affect, the registré's internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrarg’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxhon our most recent evaluation of internal @mtver financial reporting, to tl
registran’s auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors (or persons performing theéwedent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controkofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refimancial information; ani

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatohwes management or other employees who have disagr role in the registrarg’interns
control over financial reporting

Date: March 18, 2011

/s/ Bart C. Shuldma
Bart C. Shuldman
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer







Exhibit 31.
CERTIFICATION

I, Steven A. DeMartino, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of TransAct Technologies Incorporate

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortainuntrue statement of a material fact or omgttde a material fact necessary to mak
statements made, in light of the circumstances uwtich such statementgere made, not misleading with respect to the pecmvered by th
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,adiner financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects
financial condition, results of operations and cisWvs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this repo

4. The registrarg’ other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure conteoisl procedures (as definec
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) aredriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedureg;aosed such disclosure controls and proceduresetalesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepal

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtide reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallygedeaccounting principle

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtindls report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; i

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thgistrant’s internal control over financial repogdithat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has materially affected, or is reasoy
likely to materially affect, the registré's internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrarg’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxhon our most recent evaluation of internal @mtver financial reporting, to tl
registran’s auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors (or persons performing theéwedent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controkofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refimancial information; ani

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, thatahwes management or other employees who have disagr role in the registrarg’interns
control over financial reporting

Date: March 18, 2011

/s/ Steven A. DeMartin
Steven A. DeMartino
President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and ®cretary







EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of TransActhieologies Incorporated (the “Company”) on FormKL@r the period ending December 31, 201(
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiantiee date hereof (the “Report1), Bart C. Shuldman, Chief Executive Officer of tG@mpany
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptedyant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 280&, to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial ctiodiand results of operations of the Comp

Date: March 18, 2011

/s/ Bart C. Shuldma
Bart C. Shuldman
Chief Executive Officer







EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of TransActhieologies Incorporated (the “Company”) on FormKL@r the period ending December 31, 201(
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiortte date hereof (the “Reportl), Steven A. DeMartino, Chief Financial Officer tife Compan:
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptedyant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 280&, to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial ctiodiand results of operations of the Comp

Date: March 18, 2011

/s/ Steven A. DeMartin
Steven A. DeMartino
Chief Financial Officer







